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1l OVERVIZW

Financial highlights

Revenue Net assets

£ 354m £15/bn
T
]

P

EBITDA* Net debt/(cash)*

£155m

The abave informaton s stated aftar aquisitions.

‘EBITZA s defined 25 earnings defore interest on pank deposits and axierna: finance,
tax, depraciation ang amaorusano:,

Neat debt/{cash) s defined 3s the external Ainance ba.ances due oy i~e Group

less cash balarces.



1 OVERVIEW

Fern Group at a glance

Businass lines

Fern Trading ["Farn” ar "the Group Y ogeraias across
thrae principa: business iines Renewacle trerdy
Croeratons. Healincare Qperations and Snert and
Mediurm-term Lending (winic can further ce dided
into Constructior Financing anc Progerty Lenairg)
W gre Lhe UK's largest producer of sclar erergy
from commercial-scale sizes and we nave built

on this expertise 1Q grow cur DUSINESS INto oter
renewable technologies such as wind energy.
ticmass and andfii gas.

Sector Split*

Renewabia
Treroy
Operations

Renewable Energy Operations: While energy
operations have reguced slightly as a sropurtion
of our overal: business during the vear to 59%
{2017 80%), thus Continues to be the iargest cart of
our business. Qur sites Include zommercial scale
soiar cower rstaliaucns, lardfill gas, biorrass and
wind farms. These ara sugported by four reserve
power glants, which provige Dackup power 2o the
Nauoral Grig.

Healthcare Operations: Following tre acquisition
of the Rangeford groug in February 2017, Fern now
devalogs high quality retirement accommaodation
for sale 12 people aged over 60, ana then operates
the retrement villages cr an engomg basis.

“Sector splitis giver oy value, as -epresantad on the
comeary balarce snest of Fern Tracing wimited

Fern's sector
allocation

Our lending ousiness provides shart ard Taz Lim-
rerm construction finarce 1o fung the constructionr
ol hospitals, care nores and scnools, as well

ag providirg lending w ather commerciat and
ragidential projecrs Shrouglt Zur specalist proce-ty
lending buis.ness.

Owring ang operating heatthcare sitas is the newast
business lne te the Group. and througi ths we

operate two ratirernant villages and are deveiop:ing
a third.

Property
Lending

..... suammnis

Construction
Financing

e, Healtheare
Operatons

Short and Madium-Term Lending: “his wel-
astabiished part of Croud operauons can oe split
Irto Two areas’ Property Lancing. wnich provides
short-tarm Anancing Lo expeariencad, prafassioral
property devaopers,
those seeking bridging france; ane Constructon
Financing, which provides short and medium-
term financing o cormpanias to furd cart of the

buy to let langlords and

constructiar costs of higr value busiress assats.
Since mgection, Farn has lent L1 3bn across moye
than 1500 preperty loans and more tharn E1.20n m
Colectively this area

i7. 38X

consiruction “rande projects
reprasents 3&% of Fern's operations (2
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Fern Group at a glance

Qur locations
We own and operate sites in locations acress the UK.

& 98 Soar sifes

@ 23 | z~dfid gas faTl tes

’ 5 3.0rmass cower starons

/}‘ 9 Wind farmg (2 [t verturas)

~ - y . - [
u & Potpnge DIAe2r G BTE

% 3 Retrement viisgaes
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Chief Executive's review

A year of arganic growth
and consolidation

Ferr has evolved hugely as a busiress over the
last four years, with the management team
systematically ana dalioarately re-engineenng

and diversifying its operauons away f*om teing a
business pradominantly focusad on ending to the
currant positior. where 79 8% of revenue (<017
77.2%) is generated by Renewable znergy and
Healthcare ooerations. This has pean achieved oy
focusing On operaung in seciors thar nelp deliver
vital tong-term .rirastructure winch can ir urm
debver stabie returns 10 our shareholders We
continue to beleve that our busiresses ate makng
a valuable wng-term cont-bubicn Lo sec.aty.
netpng the U< o meet ‘arzels tor renewacle
energy producion and deiverng vatuable soca
care projects.

After a sustained perad of growt through
acquisiion, tne year Lo Juna 218 nas largealy ozen
one of canscidauon. With only ong acausition,
within our energy cperations {(Booerang Energy
Limitec i July 2817 see note 23}, our focus

has been on drvng orgarc growth across our
diversified operations. Although the Group has again
reported a small {0ss a'ter tax for the year to sure
2018 of £3.2m (2017 ioss of £25.1my, | ar pleased
with the progression the Group has made. Turrover
has increases to £353.0m (2017 £298.8my, of
winch £27 3m ralates (o the wand faren acadisiton e
Juty 2017, and F3ITZA irgragsed from £ 006 0

)

Ferm currently operates In three core sactors
Lendirg, which can oe iuriher divided into Procerty
Lendirg and Construcuon Finarcing, Renewacle
enargy COperatons and Healtncars Ope-ations.

.

Short and Medium-Term Lending

Qur short and medium-tenm lending BUsNSss 15
rmade up of s~or-ter residentiat and comrrertial
gropery lending. wh.ch s the moest estacushed
part of our ousinass, and short and medium-tar~
construction finarcing. Property lerding crovides
auy-io-et. develooment or bridgng .oans with an
average loar iife of less than three years IC property
professicnais Construction financ ng makes short
and medium-tenm wcans G fund the corstruction
of mgh-guality business assats including neslthcars
facilines, schools, raserve powar sites and -2rewabie

energy shes.

Risk across our lendirg Dusness i managed by
thoraugh borrower or prarect due ailigenca low
ioan to value ULTVY) ranos laverage LTV of 62% at
June 2018 {2017 53%)). anc by taking zpprooriate
acdrity over Jur 0ans. We alsc ~antair a
agiversified .can bOOK tC spread our locans over a
large numbar of projects, at June 2018 tre Group
‘B3

rad 205 (2017 208 progerty laans inssug with an
-
P

term of 2 years { 2.3 years,, m addilien to

funding 35 (2017 30) construcuon projecis with

an average size of £6.2m (2017 £6.4m) a~d an
average term of 4.0 years (2017 4.2 years),

Cur lending business puls sustanania growtn at s
cora, hawever if would not ce possible ta make 2
return for our sharehoiders without taking some
calculated commerz al nsk. We rave tharaforg pult
a successful and profitadle ousiness by specializing
N lending to Dusneszes inal may ot mave teen
able to securs firarcing from more traditional
sources because aither they .ack a oroven rack
record, or ther business mocel does rot fit neatty

nto one of the well-estabished Invesiment s8ctors.

Lending continues to be a core part of our
business, contricoing £19.4m to Group profits
pefore tax (2017 E1L4m}. Year on year, our lending
susiness saw 2 7% reverue growth. and we
contirue o sesk oOLT ~ew rrarkes that ~ight ce

suitable for our cusiness.
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Chief Executive’s review

Renewable Energy Operations

Fern's .nvcivermant r Renewable Energy Cperations
nas growr substantaby over the past four years
From niualy D!’Ov’id[!“‘.g finance to fund te

T farms as cart o ow lenarg
enawable

construction of 5
owrig 201 aperationat
wHICH generate s0lar cower As

Renewable srergy business we

QUSINess, Ferm row
energy sies. 154 of
we Nave grow- the
have diversified by acguirirg and operating asseis
that generate oower |
as b:omass, andhi. gas ang wind, most
acquinng four wind “arm sizes in Scotiand threugh

the July 017 Boomerarg Energy acquisit.or.

2

rom different sources. such
L recantly

Ravarue genaratad frovm siar energy Nas therafare
begur o represert a smailer proporion of the
Grouc’s tota: reverues. down fram 29.8% in 2817 o
276% m the yegr o 30 June 2018, whilst reverue
generatec oy wind energy sras has more than
doubled to 13.8% in the same pericd. reflect ng the
the wind enargy siies acquired by the

1 D’;_t

of
Grour n tne genad. Biomass accounts for 36.2% of
sarve power

energy revenues (2017 4_34rand re

19% (2017 14%).

Tne growte i this part OF the business has sean
revenues genarated Dy 2nergy 3558is INCre3se
53 5% relates 1o
. Revenues

by 22.2% yaar an year {of which
the Baorrerang Energy acquisition)
generatec cy energy sites owned a1 ORersted oy

798% =f total revenue for

the Group now reprasent /

the year 2017 77.1%} and 814% =f Group ESITIA
{2017 90.6%). Howevear. these are asset »iensive
businessas, ang in the 2arly years the accounrting
charge for the deprecistion of these assets. together
with the relatively ighar mterest costs on project
finance supperting site development, are expeaciad
exceed profis denved from energy generat:on.
Tris has resuttes i the business ne reporing a
At {085 1or tne yaar We expect (© begin 0 see 3
reversal o the ac:ofunzmg {0ss from ths gart of the
Groue s businass rom duneg 2019 as revenue growin
exceesss fixed deprecwat-on charges and interss

Costs Jecrease

D

femrampaer

R T T T U

Ir the last tweo yezrs we have excanded on our
expeartise 'n operatng sclar farms by acquinng
‘sravet ready’ undeveloped sitas (sites with 2.10ng
ieasehold ang planning consent) with the intent on
of corstruciing the solar farms and sailing them

12 3 thrg party once the sites are operanonal. We
“ew apcortunities that

continue 12 ook for gotential

compierert Current operat.ons and hat buld on
e experlise we nave developed.

Healthcare Operations

In adc.tior o the commerciat firancing provided

by our wending business to consiruct nealthcare

facilities ard schiouls, since February 2017 we have
atso owned 3 iuxdry retrament hving cusness
through our Rangeford s.osidiary. Rangeford ~as
developes and now cperatas two sites in E~guanc
that offer the over-50s an environmert where
they can live ong and healthy Ives n attracrive
surroundings with a large choice of laisura act vities
on site. A third site s currenily unser construction
Once constructed. residential units are sold o
residents whila Rangeford retams tha communal
faci:tizs, providing ongoing services and care to
residents. Currently heattncare operations account
% turnover and genarated a negatve
EBITZA of £2.3 for the year to June 2018 The
managerrert team s ‘ocused on bedding in and
of the exisung siies

foar 2.5

stapilising the perfarimance
whilst also looking 3t tre potential for further sites
i Pewy iccaticns.
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Chief Executive's review

Current trading and cutlook

Since the year end. e Groue as conunued
perform steaciy and in ine with our expecatiors.

The marker for our l2nding business 1s more
chalenging, with some siowmg in progety price
growin i he last year and the coentiat faor this o
mtensify post Braxit with a consequent reducuon in
the amount of demand for property lending. Whilst
tnere nas also been an ngreassd supply of cheaper
debt avallable 1 the markat we believe that due to
our spegiaust nature and e flexitibiy wea acopt 1
tanoring our products, this will not put substartual
downward pressure on aur lenaing rates. We wall
conunue to adopt a disciplineg appreach (¢ due
diigence, maintain acceptacle LTY ratios and sesk
diversity in tne portoln, and therefore, descite the
increased competiton we face, we believe that our
business 15 well positloread 0 contirua to graw

Im crergy. we scid six solar sites in September
2018 that were part of Farr's anargy develooment

busiress, generatng 3 profit of £3.1m. Trese sites
were purchased durnng the year anded June 2017
oy our energy develooment ausimess. witn the

nteniton of seding once operatona..

Tne aperational energy asseis that we own 1o
generate energy @ sell nave contnued to perform
wel sicce the year end, ard we nave heer abls o
re-finance some of our renéwable 2nergy sies on
maore favourable terms daemonstratirg strengin and
external confidence in our bus.ness

T T TR T T

[

PR

In Healtitcara. Rangaford completed a new
development ghase at its Wadswick Greer site in
Septermber 2018, which we expect 0 oe released
for sale in the coming montrs. Fro~ an outlock
perspecrive we foresee no legisiative change that
would mpatr the performance of the businesses
we operate. and overati, with an agemng cooulation.
foracasted future demand acpears vary positve

Cur mix of business areas ~3s developed over time
and may evolve further ovear tha years aheag dnven
oy the overarching iImpo-tance we place on mesting
the omecives of cur shareholdears. This shoutd not
be read as any indicatior. of 8 whelesate charge in
the sectors N which we gparata byt as a raflacuon
of the pivotal rote piayed by the strategic mandata in
orotectng shareholders interests.

7/

Paut Latham
Chief Exect
12 Decernber 2018

e Sificer
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Qur strategy

Making a difference

The sectors we ~ave choser [ opearata in such as renewable energy and neaithcare, are ones we deleave
deiver long-term vital infrastructurs. We continue to positen the Graup to deliver long-terr sustairadle
growth for our sharehoigers. The betow @oie silustrates how we believe we acmeve this while operating e
Group o make a valuacle social conbuton.

!/

Detjvering Maintaining Managing
sustainable high quality liquidity
growth assets

Energy Short-Term Construction Healthcare
Operations Property Lending Financing Operations

Helping the UK 1o Heping ta ackie Helpg provide toc Helping address in=

meet s targets for “he under-sueply quality healthcars Mousing ard tare

renewakle energy of hausing faclities for sociery feeds of an againg
producton N the U and bunding populanan

renewable enargy
nfrastriucture
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Operational strategy in action

[N this section we highlight two examples which provide a flavour

of Fern’s strategy in action,

Reserve power energy: Cynon Reserve Power Plant, South Wales

Why Reserve power?

At times of pezk slecinicity usage. cower supphed
to the Nationai Grnd {the Grid"} by fraditanal

power statiors ang renewable energy sites can e
rsufficiant o fully ~eeat dermand. Rasarve power
plants are small, unmarned gas-fired oower stalons
which car gperate for vaned pernods of tme w
provide backup © the Gric. A typical reserve gower
plant is desigred 1o fre e wathun sgvan mMinuies,
ssponding flexiby at thmes of peax demard o
Snsure urunterrupied power supely in the locat area.

Renewalbie erergy sources, inclugding solar and
wind cower. ¢an be less reliable and pres-ciable
thar more tradticnal sources, at tmes resulting
nnternittent supply. As an IN<reasing propcrion
of the UK's total energy supply is denved from
renewable sources. demand for the backup
powser prowded oy raserve power plants 's
corraspanrdingly increasing. Reserve paowaer sites
therafore complement Fern's operations i~ 2trer
renewable enargy sectors, generaung reverue for
Fern at fmes wher erergy production oy “ermn's
scwar o ward sites may be lower, while supporing
the UK's continued canversion (g susainatle
2nergy sources

:

Qur sites:

Fem currently owns and operatas ‘cur reserve power
plants (the fourth of wrich became operatioral m
Novemper 2018] - three 'in South Wates and one

ir Oxfordshure, Each nas a capacity of 10 - 16 MW,

a fracton of tre size of 2 typrcal natural gas power
vlant, woIch Carn nave capacity of up © 2.2 GW, and
s desigred o run for 300 - 1000 hours cer year,
They can e firad up far as lthe as one minute when
fre ocal electrcity marke: demands or run for much
{ohger periods cf uma.

Revenue is currently earned from @ cormomaion
of sources. Govarnment-backed schames © “ar
neentives ‘or aking the plants avalable for
specned wme percds, paruicularly over the winter
monins when elelir iy gemand s at 11s Nighast
Elactricity gererated cutside these tmes can te
sold on tne open market ard, as these piants
typically onty operate at timeas o highest electiacity
demand, the power thay gereraig is sois a3t some

of the highest pricas.

Cynon Reserve Power Plant:

The Cynon Bower Plant provides backue power

to the Rhonags Vailey in Scuth Wales. Cynor- s
tne secona largest plant in Fern's reserve cower
portfolio. with capacity of 16 MW Fern acguired the
gartly consuucted site w1 Jaruary 2015 and workad
with a eading develaper to compiete construction.
connacang o the Snd in October 2010

Tha year to 30 June 2018 was the frst full Franciat
year wher (~e site was ooeraional. Demand for
the site exceeded expectations by 45% for the vear,

with sufficient etecircity generatad to power over
4400 UK haomes. During the year Cynon generatad

revenue for rem of £2.8m.
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Operational strategy in action

Wind energy: Cour Wind Farm, Scotland
Why wind energy?

Wing energy s a key component of the UKs
contimued Conversion o renewacie anergy scLrCes
With no fuel costs o rur these gower piants.
onshcre wing s an mnexpensve source of elecing
powear. 1N many places cheaper tran coal ¢ natursl
gas. ¥W nd power Zan be unpradictable, and There
can pe significant vanator « the power suppled

over short periods of wme. —owever, as one of

Eorope’s wing:est countries. the UK can sxpect wind
power (o crovide a cons.stent source of energy over
the long term.

Wing farms cons.st of many individual wand turings

cornected to the Crid and locat powear networks
via the far~'s own glectr oty sub-station. Wind
flowing over the tuibine's clades spin a generator
that converts the energy Intc elactricity, which 1s
adjusted at the suc-statcr mw the correct voltage
for the networs. Motors with.n gach twrbine can
adjust the dirsction and a~gte of the blades to
cope with changes i wind dire<tion and opumise
sxtracuon of power from the wing.

T84 e e r e b s ea o E s s m e b E s o e a b b R g A A OREAAEE ETaA EA SN NS SA AR et

Qur sites:

Fern currently ogerates mne anshore wind
farms acress Fast Anglia. Yorkskire and Scot a-d
~

Togeiher trese farms nave 10€ wrbinas, witn
v to orodoce up to 254 MW of yenewatie

capacz
awectrnoty Ths s enough e~ergy (e fuel 185 500
UK housenolds ger anrum, re aguivaient of
powering a oty ihe size of Mancrester. Four of
Ferr's far~s waras acgoirad i Juy 2007 hese new

sias have 3 onal capaciy of 142 MW,

Fern's sites earm “evenue from 2 coor e nation

of gover~ment cacked incentive schemes and
the sale of wholasaie alactnicity

All of Fern's

wi~d ‘arms benen! from the UK Governmeani-
ROCH
o page 14L which allows

packead Renewable Goligation Certificates |
machanisim [see nete
a oremium to be charged tc suppliers or top

of tne wiholesale electr oty Gnices. Wind enargy
compleens fern’s soilar energy Goarations

witn the highest generauon oy Farm's wird farms
from Ocobe
its fowesth

typically seen over the six monts
March when irradiarca 15 Typically

i)
=

Cour Wind Farm:

Located n Argyl. and Sute, 1 tne West of Scotlard,
the Cour Wing Farm necamea aperationad in Marcn
207 and was acquirad oy Ferm . July 2017

The farra has ten turones and a totai Jersrating
cacacity o 20.5 MW, whick 15 enough energy ta

power 16,500 names

The amount of energy gererated at Cour durng
the financial year was enough o power over
15000 UK nomes “or an enuire year, conmbuling
revenue of £7.6m,
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Directors
Tne excerencer Boara of Dractors for the Tem Group are responsible for deter~ining the sirategy of

the busingss ard for accountng for e Company’s busness activiigs o sharehaigers. They have a set of
complementary commercial. erergy secior-relater and stratagic skills

Paul Latham “nief Zxec

Paui s Cref Executve of “erp and is “esponsibie for 1~e day-te-Jay Lnning of ire
pusingss. =e s also @ managing director of Ociopus [nvesiments ("ClY). where
he nas worked since 2005 Ol s a xey sucolier of rescurce and expertse o
Fer~ Paul's duai roie ensures that tus redtionshio waor<s affactvely and in
the pest intarasts of Farn's sharehaloers.

Paul bas had vanous gereral maragemerns and internal consuitrg roles
across a numicer of sectors and brings witr him a wealtn of industry
and tusiness expenence.

Keith Willey

G XEC

Keth 1s an assodiate professar of sirategy and entreprenswrsio at _ondaon

as a senar iecturer at university Codege London,

Busiress ScmooL as w
He also hods vanous non-executive grectorsTips and advisory rotes of
~Mgh growth and oore matwre companies. e nis role as non-executive
cha:rman he s iasponsicie for the effective cperation of the Board. as
well a5 115 governance.
He onngs independent cormmercal exgenience gained from s
tirme i acacemia. private agquity invastmert, consulting ard varnous
hards-on oparstoral roles (o the Ferm cusiness.

reRm o

Peter Barlow Minn-Fxerihye |
Pater has aimost 30 years’ expenence i ntarnationat mancng of infrastruciure
and enargy. As 2 sermor executive for Internatonat Power, Pater was rasgonsicle
for ar-anging over USBL2E~ of project ana corparate funding, as well as tanking
relationships and reasury activities. He ~as spent over 20 years working
irternationally for HSBC, 2ank 0. Arrenica ard Namura, financing acquisitans
struciure secrors.

anc greenfield projects m the energy ana e

His combination of Board-level franaing and erergy expenencs over
‘

numeraLs energy sul-saciory, and his all--ound iknow.edge o all the
sactors ir wiich Farn ocerates, adds sigrificant value 1o ihe ooeraton
of the Board as well as its strategy formation and depoyment.




EBITDA

Fern's EBITDA has mare
than trebled in the last
three years from E47m in
2016 tc £155m in 2015

Energy generation
Fern's renewabie
enerqgy assets produced
encugh energy to fuel
680,000 UK homes

Al
i
Number of employees

Fern employs
a total of
327 people

.h%
Carbon offsets

Fern's renewsable energy
sites’ carbon savings in the
vear grew by 14.1% 1o over

890,000 carbon tonres

/|

(D

Number of loans

Fern provides
financing to over
200 borrowers
in the UK

- L
* »
L L
a | ]

- Ay
s R S

Number of sites

At 30 June 2018
Fern nad 201 renewable
energy sites
spread predominantly
across the UK
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Maragement ackrowigdge that asks are present in
ali cusinesses and that the sxposure to such risk zan
be neavly influencea by tre crerational and stratecic
decisions made. Overall nsk exposcre hag been

recucad across the Group thiowgh the diversihiaten

Tg Key risks that the Group s exposed to relate (o

arergy prices. procerty ornces and countarparty risk of

borrowers. These risks are maraged oy trordugh due

diligence on new operating cusinesses or poientiai
porrowers, and on the value of the assets secuntised
for new cans

In the table celow, we present a descnpucn of the sk,
the mitigauon we undertake to reduce the potental
rnpact of this rask, anc cur assessrmert of whether the
tkelrood of the risk nas changed, remamed the same
o 15 a new 7Sk [ the businass.

Risk Mitigations Change
Energy market and performance Lorg-term government-cacked offtake agreements. such

risk {renewable energy as tne Renewable Oigaticn Certificate ('ROCT) scheme™

aperations): Once operational. ungerpn certain revenue streams. The pe-centage of energy

therg s a sk that energy-ganaratng income coverae oy R0C suosidies s 51% 2017 524 —
assels could fas to acrieve —

forecasted levels of ncore due
Lo Changes 1N enargy Drces,
unpredictacie weaathers conditions
and/ar operational avanabilty,

Ungredictabibby o the weather 15 rrutigated through the
diversification of energy sectors in which Fern operates,
Opersvonal sirategy and servicing of assets are opumisead
o maximise availabuiy of assats.

Political risk (renewahile energy
aperations): Thers s a risk that
sigaficant Sranges in the political
landscaoe couwd imeact reverye
gererated frort government-backed
offtake agreements or subsidies.

The UK, where the majory of the Snergy assets are .ocated,
s generaly considerad 1o e 2 stable regulatcry regime with
no fustory of retrospective change (0 governmernt-cacked
ncentves, The ootental mpact of any future legistative
chargasis monitarad on an ongoyg basis. but potantiat
charges of leacership naturally inrcraase uncertairty.

Property market risk (healthcare
operations): Decreasas i

the market value of retirerrant
arartments could leave the Grous
unabie to achieve “orecast revenues
and raargims rom its rebrement
village zevelopment cusiness.

Pranrung conganis on undeveloped @and are ophirmised 1o
maxmise svalacle revenues. High gquality buid specifications
are desigred 10 maintan the value of apartments, ard costs
ncurrad are ket under Close reviewy throughout &
constiucion Process,

The Rerawzcles Dbligation RO requires elecinoity supplers L2 source a speaiied proportion of the electriciy trey

SUDPY 1S thar Zusiomers f-am renawabtles, Rerewabe Obligadur Certificates RO 2
2asad an ner amount of eligole renewarle output Suppliers must comply v

aerer:

ssued W rerawabte energy
shtne RO none of twe

ways, 2trar by submittirg ROCs (wrich they purcnase from the generator! Or paying a buyour fag {fixad each yearl o
QFCGEM. Al the era of gac~ RQC gcompliarge peeod the furds raiseg oy CFGEM from suppurers who paid the buyou:
fae are paid back 1o the supplers trat suoritted ROCs This paypack to supplers is krown as the ROC Recycie. The

ROC Recyce s nassad thiough 1rom the suppuer o the ¢

argrator at a level determec oy the Power Purchasing

Agreemeant betweern he generator and the supclier, Farr, 35 a generator, tnarefore earms ROC revenue in two ways
by seling ROCs to suppbers, and by receiving e pass-thvough of the I0C Recycle from the suppliar 3t the end of the

ROC comp ance oenad.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Risk Key mitigations Change
Health and safety regulatory Health ara safety across the Group's achivities is giver Trincat
risk {renewable energy and prionty oy the Board. The Grouc works closely with any thirg

heaithcare operations): There s

a risk tnat inadequate ~ealtr and
safety crocedures could incraase the
risk of acciderts, potentally cavsing
nar— to the Group's e ployees.
contraciors or members of tre
public, Breackes in health ang satety
regulauons could iead to financial
peralties, reputatior ai damage or
disruption o operalions.

parties cantracied o manage s energy or retirament viliage
assets to ensure they adhere (T health arnd safety grocedures.
Any inCidents are mvestigaien horcughyy ard reportad under
the Health and Safety Cxecutive’s reporing raguirémeanis,

-

Counterparty and
asset risk {lending):

Loarns made througn the Group's
lending busiress coud be made w0
cuntarpartes with a higher credit

risk. ar decreases n he value of
proceriies or assets that loans are
secured agarst could prevent full
repayrrent of the loan or lowar than
expected ncoime being arnad

In the case of construction
n=ancing. there s 3 r1sk that delays
to corstructon or incraased
construcucn Costs could 'mpact
or the horrower's ability to recay
tra loan.

Loans are securad against sclid undenying securty, such as a
charge ovear the property Or other assars of tre borrowear,
Thorough diue diigence. including propgerty or .ard
vawationrs, 1s ungertaxen prear e all lending. Loans a2 onty
mage at sustairable ioan to value rat os anc gver the short or
medium term.

Constu.ctior progress and relevant covenan's on
construction financing are moniored o 37 01gaING Ras!s,
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Social responsibility

We work in sectors wherg we can make & pasitive offarence, be it renewaole energy, nealt~care
nfrastructure. fending o small companies that might struggie o finc the finance elsewrerz. Or Lo prooerty
profassionals he ping o tackle the UK s under-supply of housing, We hava tound this focus has a poweral
resonancé for owr shareholders |t is worth aotmg, however, tha. whist rrase areas meaet e ogactiives of
Qur shareholders currently. if that ceases (0 e the case wea coud ranshicn t2 othe-s

Some tangible examples of our approach can be seen below:

* Socigl irrpact We have atignad our lenang = “erm grectly ameowys 347 peocie who make

operatiors with cur goal of hetping o address 3 sign:ficant conu buticn t the UK sconemy.

and we create :00s for many Ohers mrougr Sur

tne housing and care neaas of the UK's 3geing
populaton. Since incepban, we have provided
finance for the construcagn of BI2 units 0

sucpliers. We strve 1o atiract, tram and rewain
“he best geople as the futyre of cur busnass 1s

of
retrerment lving communities through Faro's sependent on trer excerise. professionaksm and

tendirg and development activities mard work.
* Envirormental impact: During the year Ferm ioeWe are committed o orovidirg egual
operated 201 renewable energy sites spread I spportunities for all, with our divarsity octcy

across the UK and ~rance. These sites produces ensuring that every emo:oyee is traared aguatly
enough energy to fuel 680,000 U< homes
and thetr carbon saving graw by 14.1% to over

830,000 carbon tonnes in the year.

ana fairly .0 respecr oF racruiimeart, gromaotion
raining, pay and beneafits.

s & sigraficant progoron of L3

® -277 s0UrCe
services from Octocus investmenrts. with whom™
we wWork closely 1o ensure thay apply and
~ainta~ sirdlar social responsiility ooticies.

Health and safety Healtr ard safety 1s a paramcount
concarm {or the Groug ang torae of Farm's direct
armployees are dedcated soiely 1o health and
sarety ranagerment. We ake a proactive appreach
by developing tramiing and benaviourat safety

deyareaen

gragrammes, mairtainmng regular sit2 and systam
audits, and working closely with contractors arnd

asirressarenn

asset managers to ensure the fnghest stancards are
maintained across all our sites.
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Group finance review

Overview
As restated

2018 2017 Maverrent
£000's E0QQ0s %
Revenue* 353,618 268,801 18 3%
EBITDA 155,168 100825 54.2%
ProntAloss; befors tax™ 4,361 {20,437 iz
Landirg boox (net of provisiens) 496,897 472 170 52%
Cash 104,216 214 77% 523)%
Net debi 796,969 375,791 38.2%
Net assets 1,571,912 1420.718 10 &%

Financial position

The net assat pesiton for the Group Ras increased
during the year by £151.2m. This has been argaly
drver oy the sswng oF Ordinary shares for a wtal

Financial performance

After several y2ars of cort rued expansion,
particuwiarly i the energy and headhcars sactors.
the year 10 June 2018 nas cean one of
corselidaton far the Group. with gnly one
significant acguisitt on baing mads {Boomerang
Energy Limitad was acguirad i July 2017
increasing the wind energy proauchion cagacity
of the Groug by 142 MW). Comeined with higher
average energy orices, 3 <1se n the RQC Recycle
prices and a stronger parformance across our

consigderation of 21416,

The cash bala~ce decreasad by E1L3 &min the

year w0 £101.2~, Tais s gartly the resut of having
£14% 8m casn on the batance s~eet at June 2017in

oraparavor for the Boomerang £nergy acgquisiion

duly 20471

The Group's .can book across shert-term le~ding

= 9o,

and consruchion dra-ce nas grown 3 2% in the

lending took. tris ied o a2n overall increase in
revenue of 18 3%

year 1o E4A97m 2017 E47Im
Lower provisiors made against loans durng 2018 of
£19.2m 2017 £28 7mi, and tower finance costs of
£5.6m {2017 ELC.3m) have resuited wn an increase
n EBITDA of 54 2%, well Ir excess of the revenue

[increase for the year Costs for the year to 38 June

Tangicie fixea assers Zonunue to reprasent 2
significant praporticn cf the wotal net assets at
70.0% 2017 68.0%) of the total net assats. This
will continue © oe an important part of the
oalance sheat as ail aspects of Renewable Erergy
Operations are assat niensive DusINaessas

2017 were unusually nigr, and reasons for ths ars

BT

covered In ihe sector ,oerformaﬁce sactior below.

The Group has reportad a nat {0ss for the year to
Juns 2018 of £3.2m (2017 E22.1m), adthougr 4 nas
genergied & £4.dr proft petore tax (2077 £20.4m
lossh The tax charge for the year rewates gradamenantly
to tre creaticn of a Jdeferred tax lability

Limied {four wird sites acgeres dunng the vear! gererated
e vear and cortibuied a icss cefore tax 2* £5.6m.

‘Boomearar
revenyes °f




Group finance review

Googwel nas incraasad (o E601.om (2017 £200.2m;

during the year following the 8oomerang Energy
acausition. Goodwel s 2 signitcant numper on the

Grouo calance sheel as a number of aggqusiions
nave peen mage n recent yaars, and this regresents
the amourts pad for acqusibons which 1s in excess

of the acccuning value of Wdentinapie assets.

Put sirmply, &
businessas witl be largaly driven by thesr capaciy to
generate future revenues and s in wrn detsrmines

e value of energy gererauon

Sector performance

tre market vatue of the renawable erergy sites and
trerefore the a—ourt that Ferr cays for the sifes

it acquiras. The fuil zmount of s vaiue Zarnot,
however, be recogn sed or a balarce shegt, hence
tre creatior of goodwik to refiect tha differerce
tetween the vaiue of iIdenthizble assets acaurad and
e prize pald "ar the energy genaratng busiress
Goodwilt recegrised will be graduatly witien off
aver e period whico the Qusiness 2xgects o dernve

value frorm these revenue suearns.

Lending Healthcare Enerqy Operations Total
Operations 9y Ope Energy
Langrilt
Reserve gasand
Solar  Wind  power bicmass 2018 2017
EQQOO's EQCT's £000's £000's E£00Cs £000s £000's E£000's £00C0s
Ravenue 63,935 8,154 57557 48,345 6624 128.20% 281,529 353,618 258801
EBITDA 20,060 {2,324} 54788 31828 1,224 32,452 137,432 185,168 100525
Proft/loss! 19,441 (2,796} 1,703} {450L 237 11,210) (12,284} 4,361 (20437

before ax

Short and Medium-Term Lending

A et 8 3% average expansion of the loan noox
auring the year lec o revanue for the year 'ncreasing
oy EL 7rm 1o £63.9. Gross grofit an the iending
boox was £45 0m (2057 £31.3m), improving due ¢

a fall of £9.5m in tr2 level of provisions recogrised
against .oans durning the vear. parucularly on the
Construcion Finanung oan ocak

A prowsion is recogrised (0 e Groun accouns
when thare 15 g reasonanic expectaton that we wll
not be able to recover the capiral outstarding and
futura mterest aue, in short when we expect ing
poiential return on the loan to be mpairad, s s
consistent with e cawculatior of the Group share
price, but differs from how returns on our operating
businesses such as 2nergy are treated. Operatng
subsidiaries are re‘ected i the Group acgourts

at cost of acqgusttion, witheut reference to future
antic:pated returns. By contrast tre share price does
take account of this future growir petential,

A the end of the year, net of prowisions, tha ending
baok was made up of 2286 9m property ioans and

e solar sEes contriputes £54.3

£210 O construchon lioans (E135 9~ nealincare

zonstructron, E?'fl.’_rﬂ r enargy consiructon, with
June 2018 of 10.8%

10 AL respechivaty

average iriere

{2017 2.

Energy Operations: Solar sites

-iigher average energy and RQC Recycle onces
dunmg 2018 and a full year of operaticns from sites
curchased during the year endea 30 June 2017 ed
0 an nerease i ravenues from £89.0m to £977m

ZBITDA to ne Crous, but aloss aler tax of £E6 7
29.9m). Tne .oss arter lax s stated artar
depreciation and armorusation “osts of £48 5m,

Wwhich are chargec on a stiraight line dasis from the
aoint at winch a site achreves fu.l grid cennacton
Thiz even distnoution of costs in additan o

whe retatively nigrer interest expense. aganst
ower reverues when sites are in 2ary stage of
cperations. resuds N sites reporting an accounting
.0ss although they are cash gererative Ye
corsequenty axpact thesa sites 0 REZIN 10 report
an accaunung profit in tng naxt twa years
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Group finance review

Energy Operations:
Wind farms

Tre increase ' energy ge
following she Boomerang tnergy acgussiton led

neraung capaciy

0 maore thar ainree-fod imcrease r the rever.s
contribulion Fo™ o wing farms e he year

£489m 207 [12

S

3ml Revenues (0 Jure 2018

were affacted by lowar ha~ expectag wird speeds
and grid outages, whichk resuited ir turbinas ceng

stopped. Femedia. acton was taken in Novembear
2013 anc as
for the year 1o June 2019, The sites have a nigr
costs, including £23.2~

£14 5 faxed sie

such. we expect reveruas o improva

proportion of Sxed
depreciat
costs and
has rasuite

1on and amaortisgucn,
L2. 7 interast excense Cosls, whien

-
Li
d in them reporting s before tax for

the year of ©4.5m
Energy Operations:
Reserve power plants

resulted
2 ES8m. Tre

the year 0 June 20183
from 4 2m

Graater capaciiy i
IN revenuas NTreasing
Group owns iour raserve oower plarts. thres of
wh.ch wera gperaticnal 2uri~g the yzar weth the
fourth site necomi~g ceerational .n Novernber
2018. evenues ars (herefore expectad 0 inCraase
" the year to Jure 2019, broadly in line with the
INCIesse i energy generating capacity. The reserva
power sites conty cuwad £1 3 EBIT DA and £8.2m
profit before tax to the Group for the year

CanssmvrnrEunL

T P

O L T L LT LT L LT erpyeny

Energy Operations:
Landfill gas and biomass
Landfill gas and ciomass sitas owred irrough Far’s
subsigiary ousiness, Malten Re~ewabwe Energy
"MRE", contriputes E128.3m (2017 £123 5m) w0
oug r2venus, £39 5m 2017 £37.2m:)

Y

Gro
and made a less before tax of ELZm (ZOL? EZ.om).
Losses nave caen genergted in the o
ue to the nigh corrow.ng Costs asscciaed with
the financing arrangements in place. Atemative

firancimg arrangemants Rave baen antarad Mo

the year e~d. at a tower rate of LIBOR gius
5%, which :s expecied to reduce
s by C.EGm per year.

ast two years

a

sirce
235% (2017 6.7

Group Corrowing Cos

MRE, 1 comman wit the sciar sites, der ves 3 .arge
croportior of iis income from ROC Recycle. 2uring
the year |t was notad there was an Inconsistency in
relaron to the accountnrg ooucy across the Group
in relation o the revenue derived fram Recycled
ROCs, and an adjustment has been made 10 these
financial statements in respect of the onor year
This £57m of addisonal revenus
peng recogrised 1 tne year ended 30 June 2017
The fult impact of tmis change on tresa financal
stateents has been set aut below n note 24 of

has resuled in

these accourts.

Healthcare Operations
Fern s healthcare division contribuwed £5.2m (2017
EG Ot to Sroup - 77o% of
which was derived from tne sale of gavelope
apartments, with the remainder being from the
villages.

Svenyes Cr e year

ope-ation of facilivas in tha retreament

Revenue from inhe sale of develoged apariments
is sporadic in nature. teing dependernt on tre
tevel of dermand in the market arg the i
corstruction .osses vefore tax of £2.89m were
made 1in Tre current year. due o higher than

g of

expecied cuilding costs and faci ties acearations
UNING 31 8 10sE.
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Group finance review

Financing

QOur strategy 1§ 1o secLre long-term financing at
corservative levels from cormmercial banks to
fund our renewablie energy businessas in order to
enhsnce opearatng retums. Retums from operating

renewable ernergy sitas 3o
to mee! starsiholder excactations.

Group gross oorrowing 'nereased by £116 5 (o
EZ88.2m, resulting In iIrcraased intarast costs of
FRd 3m (2017 E37.5m), whie net debt increased
G&m. The increase n net dabt
inciudes TR0 of project Ninancing facilites

from £577m ta

attached o wind sites acgutred 1 July 2017 Thera
were further net drawdowns of E107m secured on
Ferr's solar sitas, while scheduied repayments on
other facilives totalled £18 5,

MR redeemed its £132r usted bond secured 5r
biomass ard landbll gas assets in June 2015, with
aitarnative financing on mpioved te@rms oeing

campleted i the current vear, Management continue

to keep all financing arrangements under reguiar
review to ensure the pest outceme for the Group

ne would not be suffcent

Looking ahead

in Septemper 2018 the Group sucsessTully
comp.eied the sale of six soiar stes develoced Oy
the construchion arm o1 «re energy business, Thesc
assets accounted for £29.4m net assets at Jupe
2018 and contributec profits of £0 4m for the vear
then arded. Trnere have been no furtrer ~aterial
transactions post the year 2nd.

LO0% of the Group's enargy sites ars expecied ©
be fully oparationat from December 2018, The
Groun's anergy business 1s expecied @ Cconurug
1o cerform well over the coming year anad o
generate a cash profit In the short term some
sites will report an accourting loss wile sites
reach fuil revenue capacity due o fixed site costs,
depreciation charges and fixad interast expenses

The iending book continues (C be cash generative
and profitable, and management inend o
continue culding on the Group's axisting ousiness
ines, whiist remarning ocen o other opportunities
in corrplamentary seciors which they balieve wii.
enhance Grouc returns.
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2018

The drreciors prasent ther recort and the audited

A}

consotdatad financial statements of the Groug “or
the year e~ded 30 June 2018,

The direciors are raspo-sible for oreparing the
Annua: Report and the fAnancal statemeanris in
ccorgance with aoctcable iaw ard regulaton.

{u

a3 nGS

;o
1 I AR

I

Resiry an
Comgany law requires the aireciors to prepare
fnangcal statemenrts for 2ach ararcid! yvear Jnder
trat law the directers have prepared tie group 3nd
compeany fAnancial statemants i accordance with
uniteg Kergdor Generally Accapted Accounting

For a surmmary of the Group's rasults, refer o the
StrategiC repert on page 17

The directors hava nat recommendad payment o°
a dvidend (2C17 Enilh

Dirzciors Practce {Lnited <ingaom Accourting Standards,
comprsing FRS 102 "Te Sinancial Regarting
Stancard applicatie i the UK and Repubic of
Iretard”. a~d agplicacie aw! Under company
law the directors mus? nat approve the fnarcial
staternents untess thay are sausfied that they gve

Tre directors who served dunng the year were
as follows

PS Latham

KJ Wiiley

PG Barlow

rasrebenanatars

atrue and farr view of tre siate o affars of the
group and comgpany and of the prant or 058 of tha

Post g3iance so&est aveny
group and cormcany for that penod. In preparnng i

Refer to note 18 in the Notes to e finana i )
Anancal statements, the directors are req.irad 1o

statements,

e MeN YRR IRA YRR Ay

e seiect suitable acoourting policies and than aoely

FPrincinal 22T vines 300 OUSIGESES rygpy

them consistenily,
o - . :
Refer tc the Strategic report on cage € s state whetner zpplicacte United Kingdom
Sinaraial sk management Noecnves Accourting Standards. comprsing FRS 102, have
ane policies i peen followed. subject to any materal departures

eler to the Strategic report on page 14, disciosed and explamead in the Francial

23

staterrants,

raunrs covorod o ine Siral

= make Ldgerments and accounung 2stimatas that
As permmitted by S4l4c (1L of the Campanies

Act 2006, the directors have =lected (o disclosa
infornmation required to e 1 the Directors regort
by Schedule 7 of the Large anc Medwim-sized
Comoanies and Groups Accounts ang Reports)
Regulattons 2008, in the Strategic report,

are reaso~able and prudeny ard

« orapare the Angocial statements o he 4oing
concarn Dasis urless i1 s inapereprate ©
orasume thal the group and comeany will
ZontinLe It busness.

zimploymert of dsabled cearsors

Applicatiors for emgloyiment by disacled persons
are grven full and far consideraton for all vacances,
having reqard 10 rer particular aptitudas and
abiizas. Should a persen tecome disabied whiie

i the Crouwp's emplovment. every efort is made

te retain them in emplayment, gving sttermative
raming as necessary.

D T T T Y
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2018

The direciors are i8¢ resporsicle for safeguarding
tre assets of the group and Campany and ne~ce
for taking r2asonabie stens for the greveniion ard
detecuon of fraud and omer irreg.darities.

The directors are responsible for keeping adecuate
sccount.ng records that are sufficent to show and
axplain the groug and Company’s ransactions

and disclose witn reasonable accuracy at any time
tne fina~cial positior of the group a~d company
and enable trem to ensure that tre inaraat
staterments Zomply witn the Tompamas Act 2005

e ctors inaommies

As permittad oy the Articles of Association, the
directors ~ave the benefit of ar iInzemnity whicn s a
qualifying third-carty indermnity provisian as defined
oy Secuor 234 of the Companries Act 2006. Tre
indemnity was in force throughout the tast financial
vear and is qurrently In force.

at

ach of the persons who 's a drector at the date of
approval of this report confirms that

* 5O far as the directors are aware. ihere 1§ no
relevant gudit informator of whrch the Company's
auditors are unaware, and

cach drecior has faken all steps that they Jught to

rnave aken as a director 1o make thamsewss aware
af any relevant audit information ang to esaniis,
that the Cormpany's audiiars are awares of that
mfarmat on
This confirmatizon s given and should te mterprated
in accordarce with the grovsions of s418 of the
Comganies Act 2006.
PricewaternouseCoogers LLP have expressed ther
wilingress to continue 1IN oMice 3s audttars ana a
resoiution to reappoint them will te proposed at the
forthconmimg Annuat Gereral Meeting.

On benalf of the board

/-

PS Latham
Directior
13 Decemeer 2018
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited
Report on the audit of the financial staterments

Opinion

In sur opnicr, Fern Trading Limited s Zroup fingnciat statements ard Comoany "nancial statamrents [ne

"financial stataments’)

e give a rue ard fair view of tre siate of the Group 3 and of tre Company's a%ars as 2t 20 June 2213 anc
of the group's 10ss anc cash hows ror the year tmen erded.

e have been procerly prepared N accordance with Urited X ngdem Generaily Acceprad Accounting
Practice (United Kingdorm Accounting Star-dascs. corrpnsing 5RS 102 "The Finrancia. Reporting Staraard
apphcaple in the UK ard Republ ¢ of frelara”, 24 zoplcanle iawl, ang

® have baen preparad in accoraancs with the requiraments of the Companies Act 2006

We have audited e fina-gigl stateents, includes within the Fern Annual report and Accounis 2018 (ke

‘Annual Regort’). wnick comprse tre Group and Comgany paigncea sneeis as at 30 June 2018! the

Group profit and w0ss agzour:, re Group statament of comprabensive income, the Grout statemeant of

cash flows and the Group and Company state~ents of 2-anges «» equity for the year iren endged 20 Juna

2018, e statement of accourting colicias, ana the rotes o the financal staterents.

Basis for opinion

We conaucted our aucit in accordance with internatiorat Standards on Audiung (UK {1ISAs (UK and
applicabie law. Our responsibijues under [SAs (UK} are further gescriced In the Auditers responsibiltes
for the auan of the financial statements s2cton <f cur regort. We pegeve nat (ne audit av-oance we have
ootaired s sufficiert and apcroprate to provice a easis for our opinion.

Indecendance

We remained imderendent of the groun 11 accordance with the einical requirerments that are relevart ¢ our
audit of the fnancal statements i the UK, whizm ncludes the FRC's Tthica. Stangars, and we have fulflied
our other ath cal responsibiities N accordance with these ~egurements,

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have ncthing to report in respect of the following matters 0 relauon o winich 1SAs 1) raguire us ©
report to you when:

e the directors’ yse of the gomg concern aasis of accounting i the preparation of the dnancial
statements 15 Nt apprapriate; or

» the diractors have »ot disclosed i the finandiat statements ary dentfiad matenal uncertainties that may
cast sigmiTTant doubl about the group's and comps~y's ability (o connmue to sdopt the going corcarn
basis of accountng ‘or a penod of at teast twelve months fraom the date when e finangial staterments
are authernised for ssue.

However, cacause ~of all future events or zondibicns can be pragicted, this siate~ent ‘s not a guarants
35 to the group's and cormpany's ability 10 Cortinue as a going concem
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Reporting on other information

The other intormaticn comprisas all of the infarmanor in the Annual Report other thar the financal
staternenls and cur 3udiors’ report trarear The o rectars ar2 responsible f2r the ather information. Qur
2cinicn on the financial statements does not caver rhe athar Arormat.or and, accordingly. we do nox
saated 0 s report, any o of

2Xpress an audit oL rion O excant o the axtent otharwiss expli
assurarca thereor.

ir conceclion with our audt of the inancial siatements, cur respons bility is 0 read the other miformatien
and. :n doing so. consiger weoatihar the other information s matenally inconsistant with the firancia
statements or our knowledge ootained 1n the audt oF otherwise apeears to te maler ally ~isstatad ¢

we denufy ar apparent matenal inconrsistency o matenal mussiatement, we are -equired (o perform
orocaduras (o conciude whether trarg 5 a matara: misstawermient of the dranzal statements or a2 materia!
misstatement of tre Sther information. if, based on the work we have perfarmed. we conciude that there
IS @ materia misstatemeact of this ciner information, we are reqguirad to report that fact. We have nothing
tO repoit bases on imese respons ilites,

With respecr Lo e Strategic report and Diractors report, w2 also considerad whether the aisclosures
reguired b tre LUK Companies Act 2006 have been inciuzed

Basad on the responsiblities descrbed above 3nd our work uncaria<en 0 the course of the aud't.
{UK) require us also o recor: certiarm opiniers and matters as descriced below.

raegis r2norl and Desntons ("
In our opirmon, based on the work ungertaken ir the course of the augit, tha nformabion gven in ing
Strategic Report and Drractors' report for the year ended 30 Juna 2018 15 consistent with the finanaial

staterrents and has baer prepared 1 accordance with applicable legal recrements.

In lzg‘r'.t of the knowledge anc undersianding of the Group ans Cormedny and theailr enviro~mant sc@ined n

r-l‘

e course of ire audit, we did not identify g0y matenal .sstaterents in the Strateqic Report and Directors’
Repaort,

Responsmthtles for the financial statements and the audit

of the o

LD

Responshy i ree Bimanc.a: s
As explained mere fuily 1 the Statement of directors responsibilities, the directors are respensitia for
the precarauon of the finarcat stataments in actordarce with tre spplicabie framewnsk and for being
satsfied that trey give 3 true 3N fair view, The directors are also responsible for such internal conrol as
they determine s ~ecessary 0 2napie ihe precaraucn of inanciat stataments that are frea from maternal

misstaterrent, whathar gue ¢ fraug or eror

in prapanng the finarca: stataments. the diectors are resconsiota for assessing the Group's and the
Company's ability 1o continug as a gong concern, disctosing as applicable, ~atters -alatsd 10 gong concern
and usINg e goINg SOACEr 0asis O accounting Litless the directars eitner inend ¢ liguidate the Group of
the Company or o cease operausns, or have no realistic alternative cut o do so.
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independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

R I T et al i e F [N [ D om Ty we
ACHTDOS rS50T0S T e for tre aad” T Ire Poan i sralermaents

Qur objectves are t0 3ctan reasonacte assurance about whetrer the financial statements as a2 #hale

ars free from materal risstateeni, whather due o fraud or evroe ard o sssue an auditors report that
inciudes our opinion. Reasanabie 2ssurance (s & Migh level of assarance, buts ot 2 guarantee that an
aucit conducted n accordance with [SAs {0 well always detect a2 matanal risstaiameant whan it exists,
Misstalernenis car 3nse irom fraud or 2ror and are considered matenal | mcividually or i the aggregate,
they could reasorabyy be expected o nfluence the econormic ded sions of users taker an the tasis o
‘hese firancial staterments.

A further descr ption of our responsibiities for the audis of the &nancial statereants s wocated on the FRCs
west2 at. www.fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. Tnis dascrigtion fors part of our suaiters report.

2 T report

This report, nciud.ng the opinons, Nas been prepared for and only for tre Company’s mempers as 2
body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies At 200¢ and for no othar purpose. We
do o, 1 giving trese Spinons, accept or assurme respensibility for any other purpose or 1o any otner

person tC wharm this regart 15 snowe 3 INte Wwnase hands it May come save where axorassly agraed by

Sur Cror Carsert in wnitng.

Other required reporting
Companies Act 2006 excepticn reporting

Under the Campanies Act 2006 we are reguired 1o raport to you i 1N our oeinidn
e we nave not receved all tne informaton and explanauons we raguire for cur audit. or

adequate accounting records nave ~ot geen Kept by the comgany, or returrs acequate for our aud:t

»
nave nat paen recaived from gra~ches not visited Oy us. oF
s ceraic Jdisclosures of directors remunerat or specified by aw are nol mage. or

v the comoany “Nanciai siatemenis are oL 'r agraemant with the gccounung records ard returns.

YWe nave Mg 2XCeplions to racor: ansing from this respansibiaty.

Jonathan Greenaway (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Crnartered Accountanits and Statutory Auditers
Newzasie upon Tyne

12 Dacember 20°8
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Group profit and loss account for the year ended 30 June 2018

As restated

258 2017

Note £000 £'000

Turnaver t 153,628 298 801
Cost of saes 148,739} 141452}
Gross profit 204,879 157349
Administratve axpenses HA9.045) (147693;
Operating profit 2 55.834 I554
Income from ather fixed asset imvestmenrts 2,652 1700
Brofit or dispesal of subsidiaries - 2423
Irterast recewable and semiiar -rcome 5 153 2318
Imterest payatie and simlar charges 5 542N 27552
Profit/(loss) before tax 4361 (26437}
Tox ! 353} S0
Loss for the financial year 3190 23,127

All results relate to continuing activities.

Group statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2018

As restated

m1s 2017

LG00 £ 000

Loss for the financial year 3,192 23127
Gther comprehensive income/{expense}

Movements 11 cash flow hedges . 32.93% 1870

Fareign exchange loss ¢n ratransiauon of subsicianes o ele)

Other prehensive ir for the year 12,749 7470

Total comprehensive income/{expense) {or the year 9,557 L5857
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Group balance sheet as at 30 June 2018
As restated
2018 2017
Note £800 £0C0
Non-current assets
Googwal 601,589 462206
Tangible assets 8 1,100,079 965832
[~vespranis 9 21,157 2260
1,722,825 L4320.298
Current assets
Stocks 10 73,476 51.889
Debtors (including £250.3m {2017 £iR7 7m) 1i 685,026 a2t 353
due after ~are than one year!
Cash at bark and in hand 101,216 214,779
859,718 578,021
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 12 o295 TTREY
Net current assets 766.770 800634
Total assets less current liabilities 2409 595 ____2_23'1933
Creditors: amaunts falling due after move than one yea;m o 13 (393, 546) 17SLITN
Provisions for liabilities 14 24,037 {18.647)
Net assets 1,571,912 1,420,725
Capital and reserves
Cated up share cae-.al 15 125400 15487
Srars premium account 1.449.920 1318223
Cash “iow hedge reserve a2.770) 25700
Profit and woss account 9.362 12,738
Total shareholders’ funds 1.57TL.912 1420715

These consoidated finarcial statements on cages 2€ 0 63 were soproved by the Board of arectors on L3

Decerrper 2018 and are signed =r ther behalf by

¢

PS Latham
Drrector
Registerad rumber 06447318
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Company balance sheet as at 30 June 2018

2018 2017
Note ~E£'000 £'000
Nan-current assets
Irvestmanrts 9 935,077
935,077
Current assets N o e
aoe arter ors e years u 73194 5279:8
Cash at pa~k and i hand 26,089 126,825
739,283
Creditors: amounts falling du: ;t_;un ane year __-12 10,381}
Net current assets 728,902
Net assets 1,663,979
Capital and reserves
Catied up share caoital 15 125,400 115487
Srarse prermurm accourt 1,449,920 .318.133%
Profiz and .oss accouns s8.659 54,802
Total shareholders’ funds 1,663,979 1438482

The Companry has slected tc take the exer~ction under seci on 408 of e Companes Act 20085 ~ot o

prasent the Company pro®tana lass 3ccourt. " ne peafit tor tne Airancial year deait with i the firanaal

$
staterents of e Zompary was £33 9m (2007

£S5 G

Trese financial sigtemerts on pages 26 to 63 were anproved oy the Boarg of areciors on 13 Dece~ger
pag [

2018 and are signed on thearr benalf oy

PS Latham
Director




Group statement of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2018

Called Share Cash flow Profit
up share premium hedge and loss
capitat account ressrve account
EOGT €302 aetely: £000
Balance as at 1 July 2018 103961 1170445 {33,271} 25,263
Loss for the Anancial year {as rastarad) - - - 23127
Charges ~ market vatue - - 7572 -
of cash flow nedges
Foraigr 2xchange {oss on - - - 100
retransiabion of investments
CQrRr 2OMpresensie ncomes - - 7T (1001
{expense! for tha vear
Tota comorehersive incormes - - 7570

fexpersel for the cear (as rastatad)

Sharas issued dunng the vear 154906 147747 -
Balance as 2t 33 June 2017 115487 1,3.8193 (25701

{as restated!

Balance as at 1 July 2017 115.487 1,318,193 {25,701}

{as restated)

Loss for the financial year - - -

Changes in market vatue - - 12,931 -
of cash flow hedges

Foreign exchange loss on - - - (182}
retranslation of investments

Other comprehensive income/ - - 12,931 (282)
{expense) for the year

Total comprehensive income/ - - 12,931 {3,374)
(expense) for the year

Shares issued during the year 9,913 131,727 - -

Batance as at 30 June 2018 125,400 1,449,920 (12,770} 9,362
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Company statement of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2018

Called Share Profit Yotal

up share premium and {oss  shareholdery”

capital account account s

£00G E00 ECC0 £0600

Balan<= as at 1 July 20316 103951 1270446 {12.141) 1262296

Prafic ‘or the firarcia year and - - 66943 66943
wtal comprane~sive ncoma

Srares sssued during the year 11,496 147747 - 159243

Balance as at 30 Juns 2017 115487 1318193 54,802 1488482

Balance as at 1 Juty 2017 115,487 1,518,193 54,802 1,488 482

Profit for the financial year and total - - 33,857 33857

comprehensive income
Shares issued during the year 9,913 131,727 - 141,840

Balance as at 30 June 2018 125,300 1449920 88,659 1,663,979
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Group statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2018

As restated

2017

£'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Less for the financ al year S152) 23,127
Adjustments for:
Tax on profit on ordirary actwvities 7553 2,680
interast recevable and s+milar ncome Lo 12 318
Interest payabia and other similar chargas a2 7527
Profit on disposal of seesidiaries - 13423
Income from fixed asset investments (-1 5} L7
Amorisation of intangibie fixed assals nirs 23957
Depreciaton of langible Axed assets 65955 A1,891
Reversal of impairmentl/imparmert of deferrad sharas e 4702
Nonr-cash movements on derivatives and foreign exchange I {3.258)
{Increasej/gecreasa in 510CK m 234
Incredse s debtors A {41,851
Zecrease in cradiors A (57128
Tax (paidl/receved ‘ﬁ 2,845
Net cash generated from/{used in) operating activities “ﬁ 3.275)
Cash flow from investing activities )
Purchase of subsiciary urdertakings (net of cash acaurec! axzsm [97132j
Sale of subsdiary undertakings - 29098
Surchase of tangible assefs A Sem {42.582)
Zale of intangibie assets - 16273
Surchase of unlsted investments e 100 {82153
Sale of untisted invesiments sz 105,263
Interes: received ‘453 134
Income from investments A% 1812
Net cash used in investing activities (503,352) ‘82.682)
Cash flow from financing activities
{Repayrents)/proceeds from financing Z.12% 41402
Interast paia 46,994 33.875)
2roceecs from shara issue 241 EAY 139242
Net cash generated from financing activities p ¥ - 166770
Net (decrease}/increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,579 8C.8L2
Zash and cash equivalents at the baginnirg of wre year 114,779 133737
Txchangs gains on cash and cash 2quiaients 16 230

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 104,216 214,77
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Statement of accounting policies

Company information

Fern. Trading Lirnited {tre Company) is a private company imited by shares ircorporateg and domicied
af the

i Englang, the United Kingdom and registered under company ~urmber 26447318 The adare
ragistered office s 6th Floor. 33 Holborn. London ECLN 2HT.

Statement of compliance

The Group and mdivicual Anancial staterments of Ferm Trading Jimited rave deer prepares i complanca with Jnited
Kingdom Accounting Stancards, ncluding Financial Reporting Standard 202, Tihe Fnancial Report mg Standard
appicabie n the Lnited Kingdom ana the Repuglic of Iretand” {FRS 1027 and the Comparies Act 2008,

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial staterments have teen prepared under the histoncal cost convention on the going Concan basis
and in accordance with the Zompanies Acl 2006 and apphcable accourntng standa-as n the writed Kingaom
The principal accounting poicies. which have been apolied consistentdy througrows the vear, are 32t out
below, Trne Group's funchional and presentational currercy s steiling.

The consolidated finrancial staterments include the results of all subsidhar es owned oy Fern Tradimg Limitad

as isted 1n note 25 of the annual fnanc.at staterments. Certarr of these subsidiarias, which are istad below
have waken the exemption from an audi for the year ended 30 June 2018 perrited oy 52794 of Comparies
Act 2006 In arder 1o alow these subsidiaries to take the acdit exemplior, tre parent compary Fern Trading
Lmited has given a statutory guarantee, m lne witn s479C of Companias Act 2006, of all the 2uistanding net
vaolities as al 30 dune 2018, of the subsichaneas listed note 25

Basis of consolidation

The finanaal statements consolidate the financial staternents of the Company and ali of 4s subsidiary
undertaki~gs {subsidiaries’), All ungertarings over which the Group €xerCises contra., paing tre gower 1o
govern the financial and aperating policres 5o as to octan penefits from their activitiss, are consoudated as
subsiciary undertakirgs, Where a subsidiary has gifferent accounting policies 1¢ the Group adjustrents are
mMade to thosa subsidiary finanaal staterments to apely the Group § accaunting policies wo2n prepanng e
consolidates finanaial statements. Any subsiciary underiakungs or associates sold or acguired dunng the year
are included up to, or from, ihe dates of charge of control or charge o sigNIncant influence respectvely.

On consoudation, the results of overseas operauors In ther functional currencies are rarslated o sterling 2t
rates approximating to those ruling when the tracsactior took place ithe average rata). Ail assets and uacntes
of averseas operations are translated at the rate ruling at the reporting date. Exchange diferences arsing on
translating the apening nst assets at opering rate and the rasuits of the overseas QCeralions at avarage rale
are recognised 1~ other cormprehensive mcorme.

Entitias in whicr the Group holas an -nterest on a long-term basis ard are _ointly controlled by e Troup

and one or more ather ventures unaer a caontraciual arrangerment are treated as jomt venwires. In he Sroup
finangial staternenrts, joint ventures are accournted “or using the eguity method.
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Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Exemptions for qualifying entities under FRS 102

FRS 102 alows a qualfying antty cartan Jisclostre sxemptions, subyect o certan corditions, which have been
compliea witr, ncluding noufcation of, and ne sjectior to, the use of exermpuons oy the Comparny's smarenolders.
The Company has taken acvartage of the foilowing exerrpnons

1} from preparng 3 staterment of cash “ows, on the basis trat t1s a qualiypg entity and e consoudated statament

of cash fizws, ircluded in trese firancial siatements, included the company's casm flows,

i from e Bnancial instrument disclosures. requirsd under FRS 102 caragraphs 1139 to L148A and paragragns 12 26

to 12,29, as e information s crovided in the conscsgated financat siaterment disclosures;

(i} From Jisciosirg e company key management personnal compensator. as realired oy FRS 102 paragrapn 357

Going concern

The diractors hava at ine tme o approving the “nancal stateeris, a reascnavle expectation tmat the
Comcany nas ageguate resourcas 1o conunue n gparalicnat existence for 102 foreseeabie futwre Tnus thay
continue ¢ adopt the going concerm bas s Or accouniing in preparng b2 financial statements.

Turnover

Tre Group operates a2 number of casses of businass, Revenue 15 derived by tre following

» Enargy Operauors — Turmover from the electncy generated by sclar far~s, wina zeneraling assets, raserve
power plants and miomass and tandfill sites is recogmsed on an accrual’s basis ' the penoc wwhich it s
gererated. Turraver from the sale of fertuser by iomass a~a landfll busmesses s recogrised on phiysica
dispatch

= =galthcare Operations — Turnover 1s recognised when ine sigrificant risks and rewards of ownership have
cassed to the puyer (usuaily o aexcrange of contract;, the arount of reverue can De recogrised relizbly.
and it is probatie that the economic benefits associgted with the ransacuon will fiow to the a~uty.

» Landing - Turnover -eprasents arrgngement iees and wcan nterest, net of any vaue addead @x ang s
recognised upan delivery of the relevant services. Arrangament faes are soreac over e life of the oan to
which they relats.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangibie fAixed assets ars siated at cost less depreciat on. Decrac auon s grovigad at rates caleulaad 1o wr e
off the cost of fixed assets, lass Lhewr astimaied residual value, over trerr excected useful Lvas. Depreciation
commenceas from the date an asset 15 grought into senvice. Land and assets in the course of corshucion are
nat depreciated. The astimarted usafd lves ars as rollows

Buitdirgs - 2% swaght tine
Leasehold prooerty - 4% straig~t Lne
Power siations - 4% ard 5% straight b-e
Plant anc racnipery - 1% tc 25% straignt ire

The assats remdual valuss, userut ves and depraciation mehods are reviawed, and adiusied craspaciively f
appropriate, or if there 1 an ngicaton of & sgnificant caange since tra tast reporting date Sams and 1osses on
dispasals are deterined oy comparing the oraceads with the carry'ng amount and arg recognised

woThi grofit or loss




QI FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2018

Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Investments

Investiments held as fixed assets are srowr at cost less nrovision for imparment.

Cash

Cash ndudes cash in hand and deposits repavable or derrand

Leases

At incapuon the Group assesses agraements 1rat transfer the nght 10 use 35573, Tne assessment consicers
wnether the arrangerent s, or Conaing, a lease hased on the substance of the arrangerent snd wrether the
laase should be classified as aither a fingnce .ease or an operating lease.

Leases of assets trat transfer substantially ali tre risks and rewards incdentai o ownershic ars classfied as
finarce leases ~nance leasas are capiziised ar the zommencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased
asset and depreciatad over the shortar of the lease term ang the estimatad wsefut ife of the assel Assets are
assessad for impairmeant at 2ach reporting cate.

Leases that do not ransfer all the risks and rewards of owrership are classified as aperatng leasas.
Pay~ents under operatng leases are chargad to the profs and loss account on g strargit lne pasis over
tre period of the laase.

Stocks

Seare parts are vaiued at the lowear of Zost and nel realisacie value. Whare necessary. provision is made for
obsclate. siow moving and defeclve stock.

~uel stecks (MBM a~z Litter) are valued ©n an average cost casis over 110 2 montrs and provision for unusable
itter is réviewed monthly and appted o cH-site stock.

Fuel stock of straw has been vawued at the historical cost per :onne of straw. A grovsion for Lnusacle straw s
identifiad on 3rindmduat stack basis and s reviewad monthy. Stocks are curenily used on a Airst 1N, Jrst out
("FIFO") basis by age of straw.

Stocks of ash a3t Fibropros are valued 2t ine lower of ost and net reatisable value o the Group.

Stocks of property development WIP are stated at the iower of cost and reausab.e value, Cost comprises direct
matenals and, where applicalbe, direct labour costs and those overbeads that have been mncurrad in onrging
the stocks to trarr present locatuons and candiion.

At each recorting date, an assessiment is made for impairment. Any axcass of the carrying arount of siocks
over 13 estimated seling price -ess costs 1o zomplete and sali s recocnised as an mpairrert ioss through the
orofit and loss account as @ cost of :8le. Raversas of irparrment lessas are aso recogrisaed in the proft and

loss account

Business combinations and goodwitl

Business combirators are accounted for by apolymng the purchase metihod.

The cost o 3 busiress comomnaton s tne fair value of the consideration given, lizkxlites incurred or assumad
and the equity instruments ssuea plus the costs directly attnbutable to the business combination. where
cortrol s scrieved in sTages the Cost § the consideration at the date of each transacton,

Cn acquisiton of a business. far values are atiributed © te identifiacle assets, iabilies and contngen:
tiablites unless the ‘zir value Zannot og measured retiably. in which case the value § incorpurated as goodwill.
Wheare the far value of corungent hagbiities cannct be relisbly measurad they are discioseg on the same casis
as ctner cont ngent liacuues.

Goodwill recogrised represents the excess of the fair value and diractly aitroutable Costs of the purchase
corsiderstor over the “air values to the Growp's interest i the identihabte net assats, lisbil Jes and corungent
llabilives acguirad.

Qn acguistton, goadw s allocated 1o casr-gerarating uris {CGU's | that are expecied © benealit from the
compination
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Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill ‘corirged:

Goodwiti is arortised over its expected useful life Where the Group 1s unapie to make a retabla estimate of
useful ufe. gcocwlll 1§ amornsed over a penod ~2t exceeding 10 years, Gocdwill s assassad for impairrment
when thers are ing-carors of imparment and 3ny mpa-ment 5 charged (o the Ncome statemeant Reversals
impairrment ars recognlsed wren Jhe regsons for the imgalrmeani ¢ loriger appiy.

Accrued income
Accrued ircome onicans s calculated at the rate of :nterest set out 1~ the loan contacts. Energy mceme 5
accrued over the cerncd 1t nas been generated

Deferred income
Deferred income 1s recogrised n aooordarce wite the terms set out in the cormact, Deferred inceme s
released o the proft and 1ass accownt in the oenod Lo which @ relates,

Financial instruments

The Group has chosen o adept Sechons 11 and 12 of FRS 102 i1 rasoect of francial irstrumanrts

CAarcil assess

Basic hnarcal asse rciugding rade and other receivables and cash ard bank balances, are initially recognised
at rarsaction once. unless tne arrangement constitutes a finanaing transaction, where tha ransacton s
measured at the present value of tre future recaipts discourted at a market rate of mterest.

Such assets are suoseguently carred at amorsised Cost using the effective Interest meatiiog,

At the end of sach reporting penod financia assets measured at amortised Cost are assessed for cojective
avidence of imparrment. If an asset is nmpaired the impairmeant loss 1s the difference oetween the carrying
amount and the prasent vawue of the asamated cash flows discountad at the assel’s onginal effective interest
rate. The mparment oss s recogrised in orofit o l0ss,

Fnancia. assets are ceracogrisad whnen {a) the contractuat nghts o the cash flagws from the asset expira

or are setiled, or (o) substantaily all the risks and rewards of the ownershup of the 3ssat are ransierred (o
anoier party of (©F Conirzl of the assat ~as peen transfared o another party who has the pracucal abily to
untfatarally sell the asset t¢ an unralated third party without imposing adaitanal restnictons,

Fimarsal daiines

Basic financial uai bties, inzluging trade ard other payables, bank icars, loans from felloew Group comeanies
and preference sharss, are nitislly recognised at rarsacudcer orice, unlass the arrangement constitutes a
finarcing trarsaction, wiere the debt rstrumen: s measurad at the prese~t value of the future ~ecaipts
discounied at a market rate of ntersst

Cectimstruments are subseguertdy carmead at a~morised cost, using the efective (ierest rate method.

Faes paid on the establishrment of wwan facilities are recogrised as ransaction Costs of (he 1oan o the axten
that ¢ s prebabile that sorre or au of tre faclity wil be drawn down. In t-is case. the fes is deferred untl the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there 1s No evidence that it 1s probable that some ar all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee 15 capitalised as 3 cre-cayment for iguidity services and amcrised over the periog of the
facility to which it retates

Trade payablas are ocbligatons o gay for goods or services that mave beern acguirad 1 the grdinary coursa of
businass fror suppiiers ACCounrts payable are classifed as currert liabuites if payment s cue wititin one year
or l@ss, [ not, tiney are present=d as ~on-current uablutes. Trade pavables are recognised nitially at wansacuon
price and subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective mtarast mathod,

Francat Jaoities are derecognised ween the Lkability s extinguisned, that 15 whnen the contractual cougaticn s

dischargad, carceallad or axpires.
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Statement of accounting policies (contnued)

Financial instruments ‘o e,

OfFfsething

Financiai assets ard labilities are o*fset and the net amourts presented in the financisl statements when there
is an enforceabie nght to set off t7e recogrsed amounts and there 1s art intent:on to settle on g net basis or to
realise the asset and settle the vability ssmultaneousty.

Provisions for liabilities

Provisions are made whare ar evert has 1aken olace that gves the group a .egal or constructive obligaton that
probably reguires setiement by 3 transfer of ecoromic Danefit, and a reliable estimate can be ~ade o7 e
arnount of the obligation

Provis ons are charged as an expense o the consclidated profit and less account in the year that the Group
becarmes aware of the oblgation, and are measured at the test estimate at the balance sneet date of the
expenditure required 1O settle tre cbligation, akng mto account relevant risks and uncertainties.

Share Capital
Ordinary shares issued by the Group are recogrised in equity at the vawe of ine proceeads received, with the
axcess over norminal value being credied to share pre~um.

Hedging

The Group apphes hedge accounting for transactions entered iNto to Manage the casr flow axgosuras

of Dorrowings. Interest rate swaps are neid © manage the interest rate exposures ard are designatad as
cash flow hedges of floating rate borrowings. Changes in the fair values of Gernvatives designated as cash
flow hedges. ana which are effective are recognised dwectly :n esuity. Ary ineffectiveress i» the hedging
relatonship (peirg the excess of the cumulative change in fair value of the hedging rstrument since
ncapton of the hedge aver e cumuiative change in the fair value of the negged itermn since incection of
the headgeal 1s recagmised n the ncome statemant

The gain or ioss recognised in oirer comprarensive ncoma s reclassiied W the ncome statemeant n
accordance with the cash Hows of the nedgea item. Hedge accounting is discortinued when the headging
mstrumenrt axpiras, no longer meeis the hedging critena, the ferecast trarsactcr is nc ionger fighly
probable, the hedged debt instrument is derecognised or the hedging instrument °s terminated.

Foreign currencies

Monetary assets and liabiities genomirated in foraigr currencies are trarslated into sterling at rates of
exchange ruling al the balarce sheet data.

Tramzactions n foreign currenaas are ransiated into sierling at tne rate ruling on the date of the tansacion.
Exchange gams and lesses are recognised N the profit and loss account and statement of comprahensive
NCoMme.

Finance costs
Finance costs are charged to the profit and loss account over tre tarm of the debt using the effectve

mnterast methed sa that the amount charged is at a constant raie on the carrying amount. Issue costs are
nitiady recogmsed as a reguction in tre proceeds of the associated capital nstrument ard released o
the orofit and (0ss account over the tarm of the debt
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Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Current and deferred tax

Tax s recagnised ir the statement of mcome and retaired earmings, except that a thange attrnibutable 1o ar

tern of INCoMe ana expense recogriser 28 other comprenensive ircome or tQ an e racognised crectly

equily :§ 3lso recogrused n other comprehensive income or directly in eguity respecuavewy

The current iIncame tax charge s calculated on tre basis of tax -ates and laws that nave teen enacted or

substant vely 2nactec by the caiance srest aaie i ma countres where t~g Company operates and ganerates

meome.

Deferraa balances ara racognised n rescect of ad timing differences that Rave ongmated But not reversed oy

the Balance sheet date. except thas,

» The recogrit.on of deferrad tax assets s lmited 0 ire extent that it is crobacie that they wilt pe racavered
aganst the reversal of deferrad tax Jabilities or other “uture taxabie profits, and

« Any defarred ax calances ars reversed f and when all condiions for retarning associated tax alowances have
peen met

Deferved tax calarces are ~ot reccgnised i respect of permanent aifferecces excect in espect of busmess

comprations, ween deferred tax 15 recognises on the aifferences oetween the fair vatues of assats acguirad

and the future tax deductions avallabie for them and the differences cetween the far values of uabiliies

acquired and the armouwnt that will be assessed for ax. Deferrad tax s determined using tax rates and laws that

have besn enacted or substantivey enacted by the balarce sheet dete.

Key accounting judgements and estimates

The preparaton of inarcal siatemenis 1n cormpliance with RS 102 requires the use of caitair critical
accountng estimates. it also requires maragement to axercise ;uagement in aoplying the Jomparny s
accounting polices.

Estimates and judgemaents are continuatly evaluated arg are gased on nIsioncal expenerce and cther factors,
including expactations of future evants nat are peueved to be reasonable under the Jrcumstancas

The key estmates Ir prepanng these accounts ara

(i) Provistons, mcuding imparment of debtors and stock

Deomon balarces, including associaled accrued income balances, are reviewad forimpanr ant orr a quarterly
basis. Ir considering the need for a provisian, managament determing thelr dest estmate of the expecied
future cashflows.

As this estimate relies on a certain nuimber of assurpuons about futura events which may dier frorm aciual
sutcomes, ncluding the borrower's ability @ repay mnterest and capitat due 1~ future cerads, tHis Gvas nse
1o judgament as to whather thasa is 2 snortfail between the zaryirg vaiue and the fair value of t-e Jabtor
palance. See note 11 for the carrying amaount of e deblors.

The carrying value of stock is the wcwer of cost and ~2t realisable value. Estmating net realsable value relies
or assUMPLSns around future axpectea sales proes and disposal casts. and sctual outcomas may mer to
these assumpiens. See rate 10 for the net carryng value amount of stock.
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Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Key accounting judgements and estimates ’
) Provisions, Including irparment of debiors and stock cort nued;
The group assesses al potenhal (abiities ard uncartamues (n ught or «re ‘equirements of FRS 102 Secnon
Z1 Provisions and Conungercias Provisions are recognised wren amounts car be retably estmated and
the likethood of setilament 1s probatle. Ses note 14 for the carrying amount of Crovisions.

fin Usefui economic tfe and amartsabon of Goodwill

Geoodwill s armorused over its expecied wseiui bfe. Future resulls ar2 impaciad oy the amortisaron cenods
acdopted and, pctentially, any difference betweer: expected and actual Crcumstances,

(P} Impairment of goodwil and rvasiments

Goodwll and sucsiciary nvestment value are raviewead annually for impairment by the Group and e
- OWS. JiSCouNted 3t an

Comeary respectively. The nvestment value 1s calculated as the expectead future cas
aporograte rate. “here s innerently an eiament of judgement in hese calcuiations, as carlair assumoliens arz
made around tne likelihooo and values of exgected cashflows. which may differ from actua: cutcomes.

iiv] Cash flow hadges

Cash flow hezges on the Group's external Dorowings are considerad for nefiecuveness by companng the
curnulative chenge i the far value of the ~edged nstrument &G the cumulalive charge in the fair value o

nedges term.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

1 Turnoeer

As restated
2017
E'00C
Lending achvhies 62,923
Energy Operaucns ~ sclas. reseve power and wind 107024
Energy Cperatons - biomass and .andn.l 128,293 122.853
Heaithcare Operabors 8154 £.001
353,618 298 801
The geographical analysis of wurnover by destination is as follows:
2018 2017
E'900 £00C
inited Kirgdom 344,150 288,378
Rest of Europe 9,468 9.825
353,618 298.301
2 Dperatrg grofr
This is stated after charging/(crediting):
2018 2017
£0080 £'000
Amwortisation of mtangible assets fnote 7 3L17e 25957
Depreciaton of @angible assets (note 3} 64,955 61,861
Auditors remunerauos - Company and tee Groun's conscolidated 140 120
financial statemants :
Auditors ramureratior — audit of Company's subsidianas L 530
AUCHOIS remuraration — Non-audi sarvices 124 24
Auditors’ cemuneration — tax compliance services 200 173
Drerence on foreign exchange an (577}
Operatng lease rentals 6,192 5426
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
(continued)

3 Siafi Tosns
2018 2017
£'000 £000
Wages ard salanas 12,521 11923
Social secunty costs 1306 1263
Other pansion Costs 409 387
14.236 13573

Tre average moninly ~umber of persons emeloved oy the Group and Compary dunng the yeas was:

2018 2017
Mumber Number
Broduction 249 258
Admimstravor 75 70
Diractors 3 3
327 331

& Diracors remunarynor
2018 2017
E£'000 £000
Emolur~ents 95 83

During tne yaar no pansien contrbotons werg mase n respect of the directors 2007 mil)

The Group had no other key marageraert (2017 nill.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
(continued)

8 inrerest
Interest receivable and similar income 018 2017
£oen £'000
O ank balances 153 134
Gans on dervative financial insrurmants - 2184
153 2,318
Interest payable and similar expenses s 2017
£900 £000
(ntarast o bank borrowangs m z3glg
Interest On se7I0r secured ~otes 12256 i0.256
Amortsaton of ssue Costs on bank porrowings 1943 2,268
Amortsaton of issue 20t on senior securad notes* 34 1,045
Lossas on aenvatve “nancial instrumrents m 344
54297 37532

*Amortisation of issues Costs on senior secured notes was accelerated during the year foliowing the early
repayment the listed bond in June 2018.

6 Tax o orofit/l ossl

(a) Analysis of charge in year

2018 2017

£ £'000
Current tax:
UK corporat on tay (craaidfcharge on profit/ilosst for the vear e 210
French —orparate neoma tax -0 103
Adjustments in respect of ¢nor periogs 288 130
Tiotat currenrt (ax -] 4435
Deferred tax:
Origination and saversal of tiring = erances 4892 1835
Adjustment in respact of pnor pesiads Z 50 1822
Cffect of change 1 tax rates o 1410)
Toiai defarred tax 7,558 2547
Tax charge on prafit/{loss) an ordinary activities 7.553 2.690
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
(continued)

8 Tax onooer orofitdioss oo nued

{b] Factors affecting tax charge for the year

The tax assessed for the year 15 highar (2017 higher) than the standard rate of carporation tax in the UK of
19% [2017 19.75%). The aifferences are explained pelow

As restated

018 2017

£908 £000

Profit/(loss) before tax 4,361 26,112

Profit/(losst before tax multipited by standard rate of 229 13,157}
corporaticn ax n the UK of 19% (2017 19.73%)

Effects of

Expanses nct deductible for tax ourposes 5360 14,399

Deferrad tax not rauogrised ara) 92

Mo NoT subject 7O tay ) 19445)

Adjustirents w1 respect Of prior penods 28576 10252

Effects of change i1 1ax rates 9} 520

Total tax charge for the year 7.553 2.6%0

{c) Factors that may atfect future tax charge

The main rate of Corporation Tax n the UK reduced from 20% 10 19% wath effect from 1 April 2017 Accordingly.
the lax rate appucabie for thhs accounttirg year 1s 19%. A reduction tO the UK Corporation @ax rate o 17%,
affective from 1 Apnl 2020, was substantvely enacted as gart of the Sinance iNo. 21 Act 2018, Conseguenuy,
deferred tax has been calculated at tre year end using 3 tax rate of 7%,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
{continued)

7 Socow

Goodwiil
Group £000
Cost
At July 2017 503417
Additions 172,338
Gain on ranslaton 223
At 30 June 2018 75,578
Accumulated amortisation o
At L July 2017 43211
Charge “or tne year 31178
At 30 June 2018 74,399
Net book value
At 30 June 2018 . 601,589
At 30 June 2017 460.206

The gain an translation of foragn curency denomingted goodwill s racogrised ' gther comprenansive
incame. Amort sation of goodwii § charged o administraticn costs.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
{continuea)

Land and Power Plant and Assets under Total
buildings stations  machinery construction
Group E0C0 EQGC £000 £'0C0 £°060
Cost
Ar 1 July 2017 4352 158 503 926.967 9,541 LLI2C0T3
Adouons 4 1677 182,905 5553 230,
Transfers - 235 9,305 {9,541}
Dispasals - (222 1.30&) - 1,530
At 30 June 2018 4,896 160,294 1,127,869 5.553 1,298,612
Accumulated depreciation
AL July 2017 174 42382 G115 - 124,171
Charge for the year 339 11.944 52,942 - 64,855
Disposais - 1222} 271 - (593}
At 30 June 2018 243 54,604 143,686 - 198.533
Net book value
At 30 June 2018 4,653 105,690 984,183 5,553 1,100,079
At 30 June 2017 4713 115721 25,352 9541 DE5,HI0

P

Pty
g
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

{continued)

9 nvesiments

Untisted Other

investments investments Totat
Group £ QGO £'000 £'900
Cost
ArlJuly 2017 3,390 1340 4,720
Additons 40,179 - 43,179
Disposals 23752 - (23752}
At 30 June 2018 19.817 1,340 1,157
Accumulated impairments
At1July 2017 - 47C 47¢
Reversal of impairments (note 19) - {4/G (40
At 30 June 2018 - - -
Net book value
At 30 June 2018 19.817 1,340 25,157
AL 30 June 2017 3,390 870 4,260
Other irvestments represent the Group's holdings of deferied shares 'n a number of companies

Subsidiary Unlisted Total
undertakings investments

Company £030 E£000 £000
Cost and net book value
At 1 July 2017 1343230 3580 1,046,630
Additons 141977 40,179 182,156
Disposals - (23.752) {23752
At 30 June 2018 1,185,267 19,817 1.205.084%
Accumulated impairments
At T Juiy 2017 203074 - 203074
Raversat of mparrmerits (0.347} - 5. 347}
fmpairmenis 73280 - 73280
At 30 June 2018 270,007 - 278,007
Net book value
At 30 June 2018 915.260 19.817 935,077
At 30 Jure 201/ 840,216 3,192 243606

Uniisted investmeants comprse the Company’s and the Groue's halading of

2 menay iending busitess, ana snaraholding ¢ Bracxen =l

~

the rembers capital of Tendo LLR
ngs wimited. Farn co-fourded Terao (LR

October 2012 w th the intention of conducting & proporior of s fLture rade through tha partrarship, Ferm ras 2
srnall sharghending in Bracker Haoldings _nwed from gme o me mern’s investant i Bracken Holamgs Linied
at 20 Jurs 2017 ard 30 Jurne 2018 was Dot The citeciors do not consider Tendo + P or Bracken Halaings Jireled

o e suesiciary underakrgs or ferr Trading Lamited

Daral or reales Lrderiikings are shown i Aote 25
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
{continued)

10 =sioo-s

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 20417
£000 £0020 £'e0d 000
Ash stack 2,737 3522 - -
Fi:el, spare parts ang consumables 1,085 11,572 - -
Broperty daveloprment WiR 58,854 46,795 - -
73476 £1.889 ~ -

The amount of stocks recognised as an expense aunng the year was =45 681,000 {2027 £42 403.000)

Halet

Irciuded i the fue., spare parts and consumebies stock value s 3 crovision of £360.000 for wunusable fuel stoc
(2017 £216.000) Included in tre ash stack value s a orovisien of £430.0C0 for slow moving stock (2017 £430.000).

11 Dectors

Group Company
As restated As restated
2048 ' 2017 2018 2017
£000 £000 £000 £ 000
Amoaunts falling due after one year

Loans ang advances ta customers 250.280 187735 250,280 187735

Amaunts falling due within one year
Loans ang advancas tQ customers 246,618 284435 246,618 284435
Trade gebiors 12252 24 245 158 512
Amounts owed oy group undertakings - - 135,445 12.9C7
Dtner asbtors 39,442 580 38032 -
Corporaton max 3,253 - 2,185 2725
Prapayments and accruad vwcome 133181 124,358 36472 35.604
685.02¢ £01,853 715,194 527,918

Loans ang advances 1o customers are staleg net of provision of £19.883,000 2017 E£17432.000). Prepayrnents
ana accrued ncome are stated net of provison of £5,307000 (2017 £5.999.000).

Armounts owed oy group under akirgs are unsecured, nterest fee and repayacie on demang
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
(continued)

TramiiteeT Do ~rg Failjremm Ao At fape]
12 Tregiors amcoats fallic g dus withie one sear

Group Company

2018 2047 2018 2017

E£006 £200 E000 £'Ga0

Trade creditors 13038 27533 3573 3518
Banrk ioans a~d overdrafts 330 19.194 - -
Corporation iax - 1.036 - -
Other tax and sogal secunty 26 2.275 - 378
Other creditors 11858 3,137 3612 025
Acgruals and deferrad income 32586 22,71 5199 4,749
922,948 77887 10,381 9870

13 Crediiors arrouns falrg due alor more than one yesr

Group Company
b 2017 2W0Ee 2017
. Eone £oon £ooe £0006
Bark loans a~d overdrafts H%Osss 613,922 - -
Senior securea noest BT 143.886 - -
Denvative financial nstruments (note 17! m 28755 - -
293546 791570 - -

Group Company
2018 2017 2028 2017
Barik loans cono £000 _£000 £'000
Duein Lyear m 13.134 - -
Due tetween 1 and 5 years I6LIER 171185 - -
Due nmare tran S years "i137 442,734 - -
98 185 632123 - -

“The senor secured notes were repayabte on 1 February 2020. core interast at £.75% and were guaranteed
by the subsidiary group companies of Metton Renewaole Energy UK PLC. The senior secured noies were
repaid 1~ June 2018
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fcontinued)

4

13 Cradifors amownrs fall

St

3 due abar Mors than one gear 1

“he pank loans are secured against certair assets of re Group witm 23ch Woan as nelo by the subsidiaiy

shown baiow.

Interest rate 2018 2017
£'8900 £300
Hiners Energy Limitad & month LIBOR plus 2.15% 513,191 391581
Ferm Renewable Erergy Limited & montr LIBOR plus 1.90% 53718 SROI0
Wryde Croft Wind Farm Limited A month LIBOR plus 1.90% 3,802 24,830
Glenchamber Wind Znergy Lim:ited 6 month LiIBOR plus L8C% 45,057 45 385
Fraistrorpe Wand Farm Limiten & month LIBOR plius LE0% 33952 42,235
Claramond Solar SPY 1 Linted 5 rnontn LIBOR plus 4.25% - 44507
Agatinda Solar SPV 1 Limited 6 monts LIBOR clus 4.25% - 7.542
Hursit $PV 1 Lmitea 6 mont~ LIBOR plus 4.25% - 2,950
Elics Energy 2 Lirmited & maonth LIBOR plus 1.20% 48.013 51,013
Banneurn Wind Farm Lirmized & month LIBOR nius 248% 127,442 -
Cour Wind Farm {Scotiand) Lirited 6 montn JBOR plus 2.48% 35,765 -
Grarge Wind Farr mited & maonth LIBOR pius 248% 17.245 -
858,185 833223

14 F-ovisons for lianiities
Decommissioning Deferred Totat

provision fax

Group £000 E'0Q0 E'000
AT L July 2017 1568 12573 18,647
Acousitions - (2,197 (2,197
Recognised during the yesr 28 7559 r.587
At30 June 2018 1,596 22,441 24,037

The decommissicrung provision is held m the subsidiary companies Wryde Croft Wind Farm uimited ana
Glenchamber Wing Energy Limned It s to cover future obligaticns o return and on wh:ch the companies

ogerate to s onginal condition. Tre amounts are not expected o be utiised for in excess of 25 years.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
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15 Callet up snare 3o

Group and Company 2018 2017
Allotted, called-up and fully paid £'000 L0500
1,254002.247 (20.7 1154 367113, Orcinary shares of £2.10 2ach 125,400 1313487

Durng the year the Grouc and Zompany issued 99 135834 (2017 114,955,641 Ordinary shares o 2210 each for
3 consideraton of £141,640,796 {2017 £152.243.000) grvng rsa w0 @ cremium o° £131,727.212 (2017 £147747.260)

16 Contrgenc es

nder sechion 479C of the Companies Act 2006, the parent company Farn Traging um.ed has guarariead il
sutstanding uabilives 2 which the subsidianes aking the audt exe~ption lsied 0 note 25 weare sugact at the
2nd of 30 June 2018 until they are satisted i~ full Trese kabaities totar £625,521 000, incluading intercomoany
balances of £602,646,00C. The near gatarce of these guarantess are enforceable against Ferre Trading Limited
by ary person to whom any such sabity 15 due

Across the wing porticlo, the Group nas comeritted (o make SnNgaing contrbutons e comrrunity benefit funds
wrich work 10 support the local communiaes wheare the wind farms are located, The commit~—ant is to pay
between £2.000 t3 £5,000 per MW of instaled capacity ‘o each sie inflaton-indexed). depending on specific
p{anmnq conditons, over the operating ves of the wind farms, whick a=~~our:s © an anrual corritment of
£1,045,2C0 across all sites 22 of Fern's UK solar farms alsc make orgeing community genefit cormbutions,
amourting to an annual commitmert of £240 00C inflation-ingexed) The terms of thase pay™eants vary by
individual site planning requirements, but they are gererally in the range of £0.5k 1o Z1.5« cer MW of installed
capacity annually. for netweean: 7 and 24 years after the start of commercial operatians.

17 Sinancial s ents

The Group and Company have the following financial instruments:

Group Company

2048 2017 2018 2017

£000 Zoe0 £'000 £00C
Carrying amount of financial assets
Measured at amortised cost 548,592 436995 674,533 485589
Carrying amount of financial assets
Measurad at amortisad cost 919,191 795488 5.180 4143
Measuraa 37 fair value threugh other 32,791 28755 - -

comprehensive ncome

Derivative financial instruments

Tha Group snters into nteresi rate swaps (o muugate nterest #ate risk an s bark .0ans. Tnese are designatad
2s cash flow hadges with the effective sie~ant of the hadge measured wrough other comprahersive imcore,
At 30 June 2018 the ouistandi~g contracts nave a maiunty 1t excess of ore year Tra Groun s commitiad 1o

-ecaive LIBOR and gay a fixed rate amount
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18 ‘/:;:D:S!’fj'"jr: §

AR AT AL TAN I

At 30 June the Group had total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases as follows:

2018 2017

Land and Otirer Land and Other

Bwildings Buildings
£700 £'000 E000 GO0

Payments due:

NGt later trar are yaar 6,243 181 4664 274
Later thar one year ard not latar than five years 23,658 149 18.889 224
lLater tharn nve yaars 90,997 9 117,245 -
120,898 339 140,792 453

18 Fos ~halanca shaat ovears

On 24 July 2018 Melion Rerewable Snergy UK Limited, a subsidiary o Ferm Trading Limited. concluded a new
arrargemsant trough bank cdebt, comprsing £152,130 0G0 term oan, £10.03C.0C0 revoivirg cradit fac:liny

and a £12,8000.000 debt service reserve facility. This is an amertising debt faciuty recayacie by 51 March 2027
On 20 September 2018 Farn Trading Developmeant _imited, & sutsidhary of Fermn Trading Limaed, disposed of
Belisama Snergy Limied irctuding the followsng SPY's

« Penyrneolias Solarfewd Limited

Fullerton Sotarfrelc Limited

-

SSR Seaton Lirmited

$BC Locheraigs Lmited
* SSR Cornow Limited

s SSRstory West Limited
Includea i ne consoldated staterment of compreheansive ncome tor the year fror these sucsioianes was
revenue of £1.603,30C and a grofit of 2387000 Net assats at 30 June 2618 were £29,431L.20C Tn completion,
the group recaived cash consideration of £33,879,000. The net assats at ihe date of disposa were £25 745 000
and z profit or disposal of £5,134,000 was reccgmsed in the statement of comgerehensive incoms

On 20 september 2018 Lios Energy Howlings 3 Luimited, a subsidiary of Fern Tracing Lirmited, dispesed of its
nholdings of deferred sharas in a numoer of comparses for casr zonsideravon of £3,243000, recogmsirg
a groft of £1,903.200 n tne —onsoldated statement of comprehansive income. Tne carrying value of the
deferred shares at vot the date of disposal and at 30 June 2018 were £1.340,000C
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20 Relzan gar /s 13- santions

Uncer FRS 102 33..A disziosuras need not te guven of ransacziions entered into petween two or mere
memiiears of @ Group. provised that any suesidiary winch 15 3 carty 12 the rransaction 1s wrclly ownad oy
such 2 member,

Other than the trassactic~s aisc.osed pelow, the Company's other salated oarty ransactions warg w'ih is
wholly ownea suebsr::ary mempars of the Group.

As at 30 Jure 2018 £ril (2017 £12.219.000) was gue from Yorkshire Wendpower Lirmitad {YW=T], a 50% jont
venture nvestmaeant. n relation to e group s 50% share o tre shiarehoder loar facity made ava\&ab!e o YWH
N ralguan to e re-gowenng of Ovender Moor. On 24 April 2018 YWP's cumulative snarehoider icans and
accumulated nterest, leacn of £12.841,819) were swapped for share canita. an¢ thereafter converted IC reserves

During the perica the Zroup recaved, n the normal course of business, from Yiwb 280 0GC (2017 £2500C
‘or méanage~enrt and accouniargy services At tre year end £nil ;201 £ Al was outstarding

Durng the year, fe2s of £36,457,.000 (2017 £36.368,0001 were charged 1 the Graup by Octopus Investments
Lirited, a related party due to s significart influence over the enbity f“C{opu\ imvestrrerts Limitec alsc
recharged legal ard professional fees wotalirg £73.006C 2017 £62,000) 0 the Sroup. At the year =2nd. an

amount of E3 8CG OGO (2017 24,657,000} was cutstancding which s included in the trade <regitars,
due o key

The Campany s entitled to 2 orofit share as & result of its Investment In Tence LUP a relatad party ¢
Q00 {2017 £1.294,0001 has

management persannal ir common. 10 2018 a share of groft egeal o £2,553,.000

beer recognised oy the Tompany. Al the year e~d. the Company nas an mieest in the mamber’s capital of
£334,200)

2 GO0 IB0LT

£15.817.000 (2017 £3.390.000) and accrued ncome due of £2,842,50C {2
The Company engages v lending acuvites which ncluds baiances croviaed o related parties. Regarding
entiies with key ranage~ent personnel 1IN commaen icans of £205.428, 000 {2517 £192150.000;), accrued
income of £1530C.000 (2217 0738000y ard aefered ngome o £2,6:11,000 (2017 Z1 99‘ WETE

outstanding at vear er‘d Durng tre year interast income of £36,754,000 20' 7 L27380.0001 and fess of
£2.019,000 12017 £1 865,000} was recogrisea in relation 1@ these loans

21 Capirz. comrmirmerTs

At the year end the Group had capital commitments as follows:

2018 2017

£'000 £000
Contracted for zur ot prov d~"i Ir these -anciat statements 1244 a8t
Hndraswn 222,594 234,843
22 Jtomatg Oare v Lomoary @ d oo Tshng iy

In the cpimion of tha direciors. there s ~o ulirate controlling carty
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23 Busimessy I olaalslat-HTnTals

a) Banbury Power Limited acquisition

Or 16 Apnl 2018 the Grawp acguirad control of the Company The acquired site 1s planned to be used for reserve
power

Considerator for Banoury Power Lirmited was £Q.0L, baing the fair value of assets acquired at that cate. Cocdwil
resuiting from the business combination was Enl.

Trne corsolidated statement of comarerensive incame for the year micludes £l ravenue and a loss after tax of
47733 in respect of tis acguisinor

b} Boomerang Energy Limited

Or 14 July 2017 the Group acquired contral of the subsidianes listed in note 2 through the acguisition of 100% of
the share capital Tre acquirad enuias irclude four wind stas.

The following tabies summarise the considerauor cad by e Group, the far value ¢/ gssets acaured. labilities
assumed and the non-controlirg interes: at the acquisiion Jdate.

018

Consideration o £4900
Cash . IA56AT
Drectly atincutacle costs ’ 28435
Total consideration 148,492

Details of the far value of t-e net assels acquired ang goodwill arising are as "Clows:

Book Adjustments Fair

values value

£000 E'000 £'000

Goodwil 35415 (91 35324
Prooerty. clant and squiorent 169,656 747 170,402
Trade and olher recaivables 22,121 2500 24.621
Cash and <ash equwvaierts 10,872 - 10,572
Prepayments and accrueda noorme 5434 (118 6 266
Trade and oier sayables (222,186 13,339 {235 725
Net assets acquired 22,062 {10,501) 11,561

Gootwal 136931

Total consideration 148,492
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2% BUSirE5s namnGians S n
BUsSiTaEss 72micratytng LN ey

b} Boomerang Energy Limited (continued)

Zooowill resulting from the bus ness combination was 2136.931.0C0 and nas an estimatad useful tfe of 23 years,
reflecting the ifespan of the assets acquirad.

The reverue rom the acquired businesses ncluced in the consotdated staterment of compraransiva ncome for
the year was £27 341 000 and a loss of £6,624,000 was recogrused cver the same panocd.

24 Pror perod ant
During the year it was ~oted that there was an inconsistency 1IN the accounting policy m relation o the
recognition of revenue derivad from Ragycled ROCs. ROC revenue derived frorm Ferm's biomass and lardfill
dwvision was baing recognised on 3 cash basis, rather than when they can be estmatad with r@asonabie
certainty. as 10 lne with Group nolcy

Tris change has heen retrospecuvaly applieg, leading to tre recogrniron of agdtional revenue of £5,675.000
tar ire year @naed 30 Jure 2017 Tne gffect of this adjustment nas teen (o gecrease the total comprehansive
loss far the year endea 38 June 2017 from £2.,332,000 to0 £15.657.000 and to ircrease the accrued incamre
balarce and proft and iess account dalance ar 30 June 2017 from E£1.415040.00C to £1.420,715.000.
Folowing the change, there was no Impact on the beginning of the earliest prior period presented.

For the year ended 30 Sune 2018, the change has led to adaiienal revenue of £1,525 080 beng recognised.
Tre overall impact on the accrued ncome balance and orofit anc loss account ba.ance at 3C Jue 2018 has
peer an Increase of £7.200,000,
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28 Related dndertakings

Details of the subsidiary undertaxings are as follows

Country of Class of Principal
Name incorporation shares Holding activity
The Fern Power Campany Liroted® UK Crdinary 100%  Holding company
Dafer Reserve Power Lmitea 1K Ordinary 100%  Ensrgy generafion
Cynon Power Limited [BhS Jrainary 100%  Energy generation
Nevern Power Limited UK Srdinary 100%  Energy generation
Fern Rerewable Erergy Limited UK Drdinary 100%  Holding company
Mingay Farm Holdirg Linvted Uk Ordwary Q0% Holding compary
pMingay Farm Limited UK O-dinary 100%  Energy generator
Jura Solar Lirnited UK Qrdinary 100%  Energy gereration
Acbots Ripton Salar Energy Haoldirg Limimad UK Crdinary 100%  Helding company
Acbors Rigton Solar Energy Linited LK Trdinary 130%  Energy genaration
Ferm Tradirg Cavelopment Limitad™ Lk Orriinary Q0%  Holding company
Beiisama Energy Lonites® UK Crchnary 00%  Holcing company
Fanyrheollas Solarmeld Lirmited K Crdrary W00% Energy generaton
Fulerton Solarfietd Linted oK Qrainary 100% Erergy genaraton
5SR Stormy West Limited 1k Tivg rary 100%  Erergy generatior
SSR Seaton Limited UK Crdinary 100%  Energy generation
SBC Locheraigs Jimited Uk Crdirary 100%  Energy generation
SSR Carmtowen Linmisd [BES Ordinary 100%  Energy generation
Farn Energy Holdwgs Linued® LiK Owdinary 100%  Holding campany
MNotos Energy Linntad UK Cirdinary 100% Helding company
Borzas Energy Linutad UK Ordinary 0¥ Holding wompary
Caicias Energy Limued LK Ordinary 120%  Holging compary
Fern “nergy Limried® UK Qrdinary 100% Holding company
Elios Energy Holdimgs Limitad™® UK Ordinary 120%  Aolding company
Elos Energy Heldngs 2 Limited™ ur Ordinary 20%  Holding company
Clios Energy 2 Limitan* LK Crdinary 110%  Holding compary
Zhos Energy Holdings I Limized™ U Ordinary 20%  Holong company

Terry Energy Partnership Holdings Limited K Oriedry 100%  Holeng comeany
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28 R=iater nvier A m g5k AR

Country of Class of Principat
Name incorporation shares Holding activity
Elics E~ergy D53 Holergs L Lirimted® Uk Ordinary 100% Hoiding company
Claainend Szla SPY | wirrited UK Crdinary 160%  Energy generation
Fhgs Brergy D53 Hold rgs £ dimnited* [BL4 Ordnary Q0% ~oQing company
Adalinda Solar 3PY L L ruted UK Ordinary 100%  £nergy generation
Elins Energy D53 Hotd ~gs 3 Limited™ UK Ordinary 100%  —owding company
Hurst TPY L ueited U< Qrdinary 100%  Energy generation
Clins Renswace Sagrgy Limitag” UK Ordinary 100% Howding company
virars Energy Jimired U= Ordirary 100% pPoding company
Cahring Lirnited Uk Ordinary L00%  “olang corpany
Chushoin Seiar =ar Holelrys Limited UK Ordinary 100% —oding comtpany
Chisbon Soar =ar~ Limited UK Ordlinary 100%  Energy genacation
Bryr ¢r Cidyn Selar Developments Holdings L miued [BES Ordinary 100%  Howhng company
Bryr ¢y Odyn Solar Developmants Loie: UK Cirdinary 100% Energy generaticn
Averue Solar Farm Lamiked UK rdinary 100%  Energy generation
wircall= Solar Holdi-gs Limred UK Orddinary 100%  Holding company
Wircella Solar Limiad UK Drdinary 100%  Eneray generation
Melbourn Sowar Lirmt=2d UK Ordinary 1C0%  Energy geneation
Hayrnaker [Jaxlandsi Holdings Liritad UK Crdinary 100%  Poiding company
Hayrnaker 1 axlandst Lirmted Ui Drdinary 100%  Energy generadon
Parzizu Holairgs Lirmized UK Ordinary 100%  —owding company
Parzizu Lirmited UK Ordinary 120%  Energy generation
Pitchford ICondawar Arfield & Srockbatchl Linmted UK Ordirary 10C%  Enerjy generation
Singrayg Holairgs Limirad K Ordinary 100% ~oding company
Sirgr.g Limited UK Drainary 10C%  Erergy geneation
Thorasuy Esgre (Bucoy! Lmited UK Ordinary 100%  Energy generation
Weatardoo Solar Park Huolamgs Linite s UK Crdinary 100%  —clding company
Watedoo Sotar Park Limited UK Ordinary i00¥%  Energy generation
Westertatd Solar Livuteg ¥ Drdinary 100% Erergy genesation

WSE Hullas mgior Holdings Lim-ied UK Ordinary 100% HAouding company
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25 Ralaten odaranags manim

Country of Class of Principat
Name incorporation shares Holding activity
WSE Hullzwington Limited UK Ordinary 100%  Energy generation
L tileron Solar Farm Lroeed UK Ordinary 100%  Energy genergtion
Haymaker Natewood! Holdings Linvted UK Crdinery 100%  Holding company
Hayrnaker (Matewoed! Linutzd UK Ordinary 100%  Energy generation
Orta Wadgahil Solar Hotdings wimited Ui Ordinary 100%  Hciding compary
Orta Wedgehili Solar Limited UK Ordinary 100%  Energy generation
Six Hlis Lare [Ragdaie) anmired UK Ordinary 100%  Energy generaticn
Manston Thorne Lirmited Lt Orginary 170%  Energy generanon
Bratton Fering Limited UK Ordinary 100%  Energy generation
Lanmacr Soar Lirmttad UK Srdinary LOU%  Energy generation
WSE Pyde Drove Uirrrted UK Ordinary 100%  Energy generatcn
Crapers Farm Limviad L Crgirary 100%  Erergy genaraton
Tre Hollies Scilar Farm Limited R Orawary 100%  Energy generaton
Lunminances Solar Lirtes uw Crdinary 130%  Erergy genaration
Rysroe Estare Lirmited UK Srd nary 100% Erergy generation
New Rows Farm Limited UK Ordinary 100%  Energy generation
Westwood Solar Lirmited [BES Ordinary 100%  inergy generation
Turves Sclar Limited Uit Crdinary 100%  Energy generation
Hollarncar Linvied UK Ordinary 100%  Eriergy generation
whigddon Farm Lamited UK Ordinary 100%  Erergy generation
MSP Strete Lmiteg UK Ordinary 100%  Energy gererstion
MSP Decoy Limiied UK O-dinary 1CG%  Energy generation
Rearheas Farm Limrard (.9 Qrdinary 100%  Znergy generation
TGO Solar 8% Limted LK Crdinary 1N0% Energy generation
Craprell Fane Linwted UK Ordirary 00%  Eneqqgy Jeneration
week Farm & Linsted UK Ordinary 100%  Energy generation
Sitts Farm Limited UK Ordinary 100%  Energy generation
Clann Farm Limiiec 919 Crdinary 100%  Energy generation
Sourhcombe Farm Limited Uk Ordnary 100%  Erergy genaration
Etcombe Lirmtad UK Crdinary 120%  Energy generation
BNRC IOW Lirited LK Ordinary 100%  Energy genarston
actona Somar Limvtad UK Ordinary 100%  Enargy generation

Niriys Farn bnited Sk Qidinary 100%  Erergv geneation
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Country of Class of Principat
incorporation shares Holding activity

UK Ordinary 120%  Ernerqy generation

UK Ordinary 100%  Energy generation

UK Ordirary 1ICO%  Energy zeneration

UK Ordinary 00%  Energy generation
Littte T Solar Lirted JK COrdirary 160%  Energy generation
Narth Perratt Fruir Farm Limited UK Ordinary 1CG%  Energy generation
MTS Farchiands Solar Linited UK Crainary 120%  Energy generation
Chaloraft Solar Park Lirired UK Drdimary 100%  Energy generation
Sreadfast Parkhouse Sclar § miges Ui Qrdinary 120%  Energy generation
Slauahergate nmted JK Crdinary 100%  Energy generation
Palfrays Barton Liten UK Orgirary 100%  Energy Jeneration
MZP Tregassow L miteg iJK Ordirary 170%  Energy generation
Craymarsh Limited Uk Orddimary 100% Energy generation
Steadfast Rudge Soiar Lries UK COrdinary 100%  Energy generation
L avedean Limited UK Drchraiy 100%  Energy generabion
Stellar Power Lir~tas UK Crdhinary 120%  Enevgy Jeneration
Higher {~aoc Fare Lenited LHe Ordirary 130%  Energy generation
ASE Bradrord Lmired UK Crdirtary 130%  Erergy generation
Marlay Thatch Solar Linad LK Ordinary 130%  Energy gereration
TSO solar 102 Lirmted UK Ordirary 120%  Energy generation
Maadows Farm Jmited UK Ordinary 130%  Energy generation
Sun Green Energy _rmited Uk Ordinary 120%  Energy generation
WSE Park Wall Limites LIK QOrdinary 130%  Erergy Jeneration
T Solar 63 timred UK Orchinary C0%  Energy generation
Trecown Farm Lrnited Uk Ordinary 1G0%  Enegy generation
Hil Eng Sarre birrited UK Sidmary 12C%  Energy s=neration
Causilzey Limirag UK Crdirary 100%  Energy generation
=Syms Lane Sclar umited UK Crdinary 130% Enersgy ganeration
Sulis 2rergy Holdings Linutad™ iJK rdirary 1CC%  Holding company
Subs Erergy Lomtens LUK Crdinary 150% Holdimg —ompany
Haymaker (Mot 1 genutads Uk Tetinary 100%  Energy joneration

Hrack Solar i, roitad i< Crchinary 120%  Energy genaraion
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Caountry of Class of Principal

incorporation shares Holding activity

tate Solar Lirmred UK Crdirary 120%  Energy generaton

M HIE Fanm Solar urnited UK Ordinary 100% Ernergy generaton
Datry House Sclar Lirmited LUK Crdinary 120%  Energy generaton
El s Energy 2 France SAS France Crdirary 130% Holding comigany
Agrisol 2 SARL Erance Ordinary 1J0% Energy generation
Bausolairs 5 SARL France Ordinary 120% Energy generation
Banisolairs 7 SAR L France Ordirary 120% Energy generahion
Ftacsol Carrargue 54RL Erance Ordi~ary 120%  Energy generation
Elzcsol France 07 SARL France Crdirary 120%  Energy generabion
Elacsol France LL SARL France Qrdirary i70% Energy generaton
Eilecsol Frarce 1S SARL France Ordinary 120%  Energy generation
Elacsol Franca 19 SARL France Crdinary 120% Erergy gereraton
Elzcsol France 22 SAPL France Crdinary 100% Energy generat-on
Elzcsal France 24 5ARL France Crdinary 120% Energy generation
Elansol France 25 SARL France Crdinary 100%  Ernergy generation
Elacsoi France 28 SAR France Crrdinary 170%  Lnergy generatior
Flecsot France <1 SARL France Crdinary 10G%  Energy generation
Elecsob Haut var SARL France Crdinary 100%  Energy genstaton
Sarmmat SARL France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Salarf LPOS SARL France Ordinary 120%  Energy ganeration
Sclarfi SPUL SAR - France Ordinary 100% Energy generaton
Salarfi SPOZ SARL France Ordirary 130%  Energy generation
Solarfl SPOS SARL France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Souwfi SRS SARL France Ordirary 1C0%  Energy gensaration
Satarn 5POS SARL France Ordirary 100%  Energy generaton
Sotarh 9P L SARL France Ordirary 100% Energy Jeneration
Violtaframca SARL France Ordirary 100% Energy generaton
‘Voltafrarce 13 SARL France Ordinary 100%  Energy generation
Voltafrarce 13 SARL France Ordirary 130% Energy generaton
Voltafrarce 05 SARL France Orclirary 100% Energy generation
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25 Relatec inderrak rgs coninued)
Country of Class of Principal
Name incorparation shares Holding activity
Woydde Troft Wind Farm Limited UK Cirdinary 100% Energy jereratior
Geercnamber Wind Energy L ed Uk Ordmary 100%  Energy generation
rraisthorpe (Howdmg) Lirited UK Ordinary 10C% Holdirg company
Frastiorps Wind Farm Leontas UK Ordmary 100C% Erergy generation
Porthos Solar Holaings Limitsd= UK Ordmiary 100%  Holdirg comparny
Barthos Solar Lmited UK Crddinary 100% Holding zompatty
Riany Solar Farm Lirwted UK Qrdinary 100%  Energy generation
(rassing Sotar Farm Limited UK Ordinar, 1N0%  Energy generation
Cagwell Solar ~ar- Lamited UK Ordinary L0O%  Energy generation
NGE L ited UK Qrdmary 100%  Energy jeneration
Pesrtmat solar 2 Limitad g Ordinary 100% Energy generation
{=epdae Farr Solar Limited UK Crdinary 100% Energy Jeneration
UKSE 13 Solar Lrmited UK Cirdinary 100% Energy generation
Farn Healthcars Hodings —imiad™ UK Drdinary 100%  Holding comparty
Rangaford Reurement Lang Holdirgs Limited™ K Ordinary 100% Hoiding company
Rangeford Holdings wimited UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Rangeford Porkerng Liritad UK Ordinary 100%  Retirement viiage
caveloprment
Rangeford Provarmes Limitea® UK Ordinary 100% Dormant
lormpany
Rang=ford RAR Limited UK Ordinary 10C%  Reurement allage
gevelopment
Rangeford Cirencester Lirmnred LK Crdinary 100%  Rewrement village
development
Rangeford Care Linuted UK Crdinary 100%  Care services for a
retrement viilage
Wadswick Green Property Senacas wmdead UK Ordinary 100% Service charge
administrator
Wadswick Green Limited UK Ordinary 100%  Rewementvilage
oparator
Rangeford Capita: Lirmutad LK, Crdinary 10C% Faailitation of
sale Sfreursiment
propertues
fucalyotus Enargy Hotdings Lomitec™ UK rdinary 100% Holding company

O
Eulcalyotus ehargy Limieza*® UK Crdinary 107% Holding company
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Country of Class of Principat

Name incorporation shares Holding activity
Maiton Renewable Enerzy UK ple UK Drdinary 100% Helding comeany
Meiton Renewable Energy (Hoidimygs) Limited® UK Ordmary 100% Hold ng comgany
Meiton LG Holding Lisentad™ UK Srdinary 100%  Holding carmpany
g ¥ 3 aany

Mearan LG Erergy Lemitad™ UK Crdinary 00% Holding comoany
Meigon LG ROC Limred* LK Trdinary 100% Asset weasing
cormnany

CLPE Holings Limetad® UK Crrdinary 100%  Hclding company
CLP znvirogas L-mtec* UK Qrdinary 100% Dperating and
malnienance

senvices

CI.P Deveropmants Limised™ UK Crdmary L00%  Dormant cormpzany
CLP Services Linmited™ UK Srcinary 100%  Dormant company
CLPE [999 Limitas® UK Crdinary 100% Holding comany
CLPE 1991 Liruted 1K Crdinary 100% Dormant comcany
' PE Projacts 1 Limited™ UK Crdinary 100%  Holding company
CLPE Projects 2 Lirrited” UK Crdinary 100%  Holding comoany
CLPE Projects 3 Lim.ted® UK 100%  Holding comgany
CLPE ROC - 1 Limitaa™ Uk 100%  Ensrgy generarior
CLPE ROC - 2 Limited™ K Droinary 100%  Energy geresaton
CLPE ROC - 3 Limited* Ui Zrdinary 100%  Etrergy generaton
CiPE RQOC - 4 Limited* UK Crdinary 100%  E-ergy generation
Bellnouse Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100%  Energy generaton
Creison Meadow Energy timited® UK Zrdinary 100%  E£nergy generaton
~#pummerston Energy Lirmted” K Crdinary 100%  Energy generation
Lmited Mines £nergy Liemitad™® Lik Deninary 100%  Eneegy genarghon
Fhunney Hilk Energy Limmtag® UK Trridinary 100X Erargy genaraion
Beigrton Energy _imnited® UK Crdinary 100%  Erergy generation
Cotesbach Energy Lirmfec™ LUK Drdary v generation

Quean's Park Read Energy Limited™ UK Ordanany 100%  Ersergy generation
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Country of Class of Principat

Name incorporation shares Holding activity
Skeiprooka Tnergy Limiter™ UK Ordinary 100%  Energy generation
Wetherder Energy Limied” % Crdinary 100%  Energy generation
Auchencarroch Energy Limited-* UK Ordinary 100%  Ernergy generaton
Bolar Erergy Limated® UK Oranary 100%  Energy generaton
Celstarvvarth Erergy amited™ UK Ordinary 100%  Energy generation
Conron Brdge Erergy Lired® UK Ordinary 100% Energy generztion
Falbwell Tnargy rntad® K Ordinary 100%  Energy generation
Gartaff Energy Linmited: UK Ordinary 100%  Dormant company
Jarmeson Poad Exergy Lorite 2> UK Ordirary 100% Energy generation
Kilgarth Energy Lemitedsr UK Ordinary 100%  Dormant company
tMarch Epergy Lrotad® UK Ordinary 100%  Energy generaticn
Todh s Erargy Loorten™ UK Crdinary 160%  Lnergy generation
wrinney Hill Energy 2 Linntad UK Ordinary 130%  Dormant company
Baetlay Enargy L miten* UK Cirdinary 100%  Energy generation
Cathlan Energy Lirited ™ UK Qrdinary 100%  Energy generation
Cilgwyn Energy Liited UK Ordinary 100%  Donmant compaity
Stoneyhill Energy Lmited? UK Ordhinary 100%  Dormant company
Snettarton Energy cimitad UK Qrdinary 100% Darmant company
CLPE ROC - 2A Limitad UK Orainary 100% Dormant comparty
CLPE ROC - 3A Limited* UK Drdinary 100%  Energy generation
CLRPE ROC = 4A Limitart* UK Ordinany 10N%  Energy generation
Meiton Renewabie cnargy Meweo Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100%  Houding company
£PR Rerewable Energy Liritag® UK Ordinary 106%  Holding comypany
Energy Powar Rescurtes Lrnited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy project
development and

managerment

servicas

EPR Soottand Lmited ™ UK Ordinary 100%  Energy generation
£PR Ly Lirnmad™ UK Ordimary 1Q0%  Energy gereratinn

b
o

EER Ege Limitac” UK ordinary 10U%  Energy generaton




52

N

3
-

¥
IS
J
=
0

(@)

4] FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 3

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
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25 Reigten Lnder 2k ags lemntnaan,

Country of Class of Principal
Name incorperation shares Holding activity
FPR Tlanford cumded® UK Ordinary 0% Erergy generation
EPR Thetiord Lirnted™ U= Drdinary 100%  Energy genersiion
Fibraphos Lemitec™ UK Ordinary 100% supply of fertiliser
Anglan Straw Lirriited UK Ordinary 100%  Dormant company
BesrSalecuor Limmed UK Ordinary 100%  Darmant company
Energy Power Resources (MNewen] Lirmitad UK Ordinary 100% Dormant company
EPR Ely Power Limered 1S Ordinary 100%  Dormant company
Fiprowatt L miten U Qrdinary 100%  Dormant company
Fiorowatt Group limited UK Ordinary 130%  Dormant company
First Renewables Lirited UK Ordinary 160%  Dormant comparny
Banbury Sower Lirted™ UK Ordinary 100%  Ererygy generation
Boamezrang Eneqgy Lirited®” UK Qrdinary 5C% kolding company
Farn Energy Jupiter ACauisitions _irmuted”? UK Crdinary 100% Dommant company
Fern Enargy R agelWinc —otdings Lmitad” LUK Crdinary 100%  Dormant company
Farn Enargy Wind Haodings Limitacss UK Ordinary 100%  Hoding company
Farn Encrgy Whiteside Hold'rgs Uirnited*? UK drdinary 100%  Dormant company
Farn Energy R ggewind Acguistmons Linited =" UK Ordinary 100% Howing company
Fern Energy R agewind Acguis.ions Nurmber? UK Ordingry 160%  Dormant company
Farn Enargy Cour Howdings Jimited* UK Crdinary 100%  Holding company
Ricge “Minc Acguismion Lirmeg™? UK Ordinary 100%  Holding company
Bainneun and Farm Extension Um.teg? LK Ordinary NQ%  Dormant company
Cour WindFarm Hotdings Liitea? UK Orddinary 100%  Holding company
Fern rangel Limpad?® UK Ordinary 100% Howding company
sucutire Lang Company urrieac? LK Qrdinary 100%  Energy generation
Beinneun Holdings L nuted” UK Craimary 100% Bowing company
B2nneur Windg Farm Lireted” UK Ordmary 100%  Energy generaton
Grange Wind Farm Limired? UK Ordinary 100%  Energy generat'nn
Cour Wird Farm {Scottarl Lieites® LUK Ordinary 100%  Energy generahon

Arkes Wi e, et L ¢ H )
Yorkshire Windc awer Limited UK Ordinary 50%  Energy generalion
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*Susiaanes examoe: rom audit by wrtue 9° 54794 of e Companias Act 2005,

a Sucsidianias acguirsd as part of the Boamerang Energy Limited acguistion

The “ern Power Compary Lited, fern Energy Holdings wimiiea, Fers Trading Devecpment Lamied, Farm
—~ealthcare Holdings Lirmited ars fucalyptus Energy —oidings Liritad are hed drectly y the CTompany Al
ather subsidaies are neld irdiractly.

The ceg stered office of 3il zomeanies listed above 1s Eth Fizor, 33 Holborn, London, ZCIN 2H7 except for
“hose set aut Dalow

*Weastwooo Way, Westwood Business Park. Coverntry, TV4 8LG

iPinsact Masons LLE Parces Excrange. 1 Eart Gray Sreet, Ednburgh, 243 9AQ

391 West George Strest, Glasgow, G2 2120

“he Jirectors celieve hat the carying vawe of tre rvasuments 1s supportee oy ther underlying net assets.




BlAPPENDIX — SHAREZ PRICE PERFORMANCE
Fern’s share price has performed in line with targets

Share price growl since meapton Fern Trading umited

s T

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Parformance is calculated Gased or the sae grice 1or Fer-'s smares at 2 June each year.

Annual discrete performance

Financial Year Discrete share price performance
June 2017 -18 1.75%
June 2016-17 5.55%
June 2015-16 3.83%
June 2014 -15 4.00%
June 2013 -14 3.73%
June 2012 -13 3.98%
June 2011-12 4.10%
June 2010 -11 4.21%

Source Jctopus Investments, 2 une 2017
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6| COMPANY INFORMATION

Directors and Advisors

Directors independent auditors
PS Latham Pricewaterrouseloopers L=
KJ Willey

o0 Barlow Chartered Accountants snd Statutory Auditors
Centrat Square South, Orchard Stree:
Company secretary Nawcasile upor Tyne NEL 3AZ

Octopus Company Secretarial Services Limited

Company humber
06447318

Registered office

B T LT T L L L LT L L P LT P T

Atk Ficor, 33 Holbomn, _ancon ECIN 25T

Forward-looking statements

Tris Annual Report contains certain forward-looking staterments related to the Company's future business
and financia: performarce and future events or developments. These staterments are cased on e Currart
krowledge and expectations of managemeant and are subject to assumplions, rsks and unceranies, some
of which are related to factors that are beyond the controt of the Compary. Accordingly, no assurance can
be gven that any particular axpectation will be met ana forward-looking statements regarding oast rends or
activiues should not be taken 35 2 raprasantation that sucn trends or activilies wal continue i tha future, Pass
perforrance cannot be rebea on as a guide © future performance. Nothing 'n thes Annuat Repart snowd be
construed as a profit forecast.



